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          1  COMMITTEE ON TRANSPORTATION

          2                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: Good afternoon, and

          3  welcome to today's hearing on the Committee on

          4  Transportation. The Committee will be considering

          5  several base stations applications, in addition to

          6  Intro. No. 511, concerning the regulation of street

          7  vending businesses.

          8                 The Committee expects to vote on

          9  three items related to the base station applications

         10  as follows:

         11                 Resolution No. 600 to call up for the

         12  Council to review the termination by TLC to approve

         13  an application by Delta Cars, Incorporated, to

         14  operate a new base station in Staten Island.

         15                 Intro. No. 520, which would approve

         16  that termination.

         17                 Intro. No. 525, which would approve

         18  the termination by the TLC to approve an application

         19  by Carlton and Carlton, Incorporated, to operate a

         20  base station in the Bronx.

         21                 Intro. No. 511 is an effort to

         22  address many of the issues relating to street

         23  vending that had been discussed publicly during the

         24  last few years.

         25                 The Council's concern with balancing
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          2  the ability of the street vendors and retail

          3  merchants who operate stores to earn their

          4  livelihood. And other concerns, such as protecting

          5  consumers, sidewalk congestion and reducing illegal

          6  street vending.

          7                 Intro. No. 511 consolidates some of

          8  the most significant provisions on the two pending

          9  bills, Intro. No. 337, which I introduced, and

         10  Intro. No. 110 by Council Member Fisher.

         11                 Intro. No. 511 would be the first

         12  time to require that the warrant be issued and would

         13  be establishing a system for the issuance to vendors

         14  for specific locations and time periods where they

         15  could conduct vending.

         16                 Intro. No. 511 would also substitute

         17  a new street vending committee for the current

         18  street vendor review panel to consider street

         19  restrictions and other related vending issues. This

         20  Committee would make a recommendation to the Mayor

         21  who could then propose to the Council a local law to

         22  implement those recommendations.

         23                 This would also eventually phase out

         24  temporary permits, retaining only full-term permits

         25  and would return some multiple permits to persons
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          2  who previously held them prior to February 3rd,

          3  1995, and who were and are still either

          4  manufacturers or exclusive distributors of the same

          5  product.

          6                 Other provisions of the bill are

          7  discussed in the Committee reports located at the

          8  side table. We are expecting to hear today from

          9  vendors, representatives, business improvement

         10  districts and other community groups.

         11                 At this time I will begin the

         12  testimony, but I just also want to add that this

         13  issue has been before this Council, like I said, for

         14  quite some time, and we have had some different

         15  hearings, and the problem here is that there needs

         16  to be a balance, an important balance between

         17  business, people who operate on the streets, as well

         18  as the vendors, knowing that there are many, many

         19  vendors who make up an integral part of this City

         20  who are an important part of our City.

         21                 You will hear today some testimony

         22  from many immigrants who came to this country

         23  without anything, and they started out doing vending

         24  and then they moved up doing manufacturing, as well

         25  as then of course using their carts to vend their
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          2  very same product. I have gotten calls from other

          3  manufacturers that want to vend their products on

          4  the streets, they want to sell their product on the

          5  streets, and I think that is another way of

          6  promoting more business in the City of New York.

          7                 I am also concerned with once upon a

          8  time an ice cream company that was on Staten Island,

          9  and I think this Council, when we voted the law

         10  which required one permit for one person, put the

         11  last nail in the coffin of that company and of

         12  course it went out of business.

         13                 We have to look at see what we can do

         14  to help these small business people, as well as to

         15  understand that there are streets and there are

         16  problems with congestions and we can deal with them

         17  as well.

         18                 The bill the way it stands right now

         19  is something obviously that people have issues and

         20  want it addressed and we have no problems. I have

         21  had meetings already with different groups of

         22  people, and we are ready to listen because I want

         23  the final product, the final bill, which can be

         24  helpful to everybody, understanding that not

         25  everybody's needs are going to be satisfied and that
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          2  obviously there needs to be some room to compromise,

          3  to work with the people and to keep that fair

          4  balance.

          5                 So, I will keep that in mind, while

          6  we do the negotiations of this bill, and how we move

          7  forward, keeping in mind that we don't want to hurt

          8  anybody and I feel very strongly about small

          9  businesses, and that is the emphasis of this bill,

         10  of those businesses that are small manufacturers or

         11  any type of manufacturer who sell their product.

         12                 I could tell you that I am concerned

         13  that when I was growing up good humor was an

         14  important part of, at least New York City used to

         15  see them on the street, as well as many, many other

         16  companies, Chipwich and other ice cream and ices and

         17  pretzel companies, and I would like to see that back

         18  again and to see those type of manufacturers

         19  encouraged to use carts and to sell their products

         20  via this system.

         21                 I am also concerned that some of

         22  these businesses, are like this ice cream company

         23  and other companies that have been closed because of

         24  laws that prohibit them from operating in the City

         25  of New York.
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          2                 So, I hope that with this hearing and

          3  continued negotiations, we can come up with a bill

          4  that we can help everybody.

          5                 At this time I want to call upon

          6  Alfredo. Now, before you start, just one second.

          7  Before you start, Council Member Fisher wants to

          8  make a statement.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER FISHER: Thank you very

         10  much, Mr. Chairman. And I wanted to thank you for

         11  the leadership that you have shown on what is a very

         12  contentious issue.

         13                 I originally proposed Intro. 110 as a

         14  common sense approach to resolving the issues of

         15  congestion and accountability which I believe to be

         16  the core of the continuing controversy over street

         17  vending.

         18                 I was heartened by the broad support

         19  that it received as a framework for discussion,

         20  although there were a myriad of details that had to

         21  be considered during the public hearing process and

         22  I had the opportunity to meet with both those that

         23  like the approach and those that were critical of

         24  it, but at least we thought we were making some

         25  progress.
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          2                 At the same time, the Transportation

          3  Committee continued to be concerned about the

          4  ongoing disputes regarding the manner in which

          5  permits were to be awarded, which was an issue that

          6  we did not address in 110, and the Committee's

          7  concern was particularly in light of legal and

          8  regulatory developments, court cases, as well as

          9  actions of the vendor review panel, subsequent to

         10  the last time we had taken this matter up as a full

         11  Council.

         12                 Council Member Dear and I tried to

         13  mesh these issues in an effort to provide a

         14  comprehensive proposal, and Intro. 511 is the result

         15  of that. But since this proposed local law was

         16  introduced a few weeks ago, I have become convinced

         17  that the internal balances necessary to address

         18  these complex issues together have skewed against

         19  the successful effort to address either one.

         20                 In other words, the attempt to mix

         21  where apples can be sold with who could sell bananas

         22  now appears to me to be fatally flawed and lacks the

         23  modicum of support necessary to make it a viable

         24  basis for the Council to achieve closure on this

         25  matter.
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          2                 Consequently, I have reluctantly

          3  decided to withdraw my sponsorship of 511, instead I

          4  would urge the Committee to take up my original bill

          5  110, which I believe was a well crafted initiative,

          6  and at the same time, I urge the Committee to

          7  continue working with you, Chairman Dear, and in

          8  your good faith effort to ensure that the process of

          9  awarding permits is fair to all of those involved.

         10                 Thank you very much.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: Okay, Alfredo, do

         12  you want to identify yourself for the record?

         13                 MR. THIEBOUD: (Broken English) good

         14  afternoon. My name is Alfredo Thieboud, I own the

         15  company that is named Delicioso Colo Hglolo, 849

         16  Ninth Avenue, which I got over 100 vendors working

         17  around the City.

         18                 I am afraid about these things going

         19  on lately. You know, like they close 100th Street in

         20  Downtown Manhattan, right? What is going to happen

         21  is close to 1,000 vendors are going to be out of

         22  work.

         23                 With this new law what they are going

         24  to create is worse. What is going to happen to the

         25  vendor, where are they going? Eventually they are
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          2  going to go some place where the other vendors are

          3  located and it is going to be a lot of fights and a

          4  lot of things. It is going to happen with the

          5  temporary permit, which is going to be another week

          6  in the street is going to be another major problem,

          7  because if they close the street, what is the vendor

          8  going to be selling? They are never going to quit,

          9  they have families to support. Eventually it is

         10  going to be some place else. They are going to take

         11  somebody's spot, there are going to be a lot of

         12  problems.

         13                 What I want to say, lately with this,

         14  my business is getting to be that I don't think I

         15  will be in business tomorrow. I spent a lot of money

         16  in the business, and I prefer to do some kind of

         17  thing to help us, everybody who has permit,

         18  everybody come to work, I wish my permits would be

         19  all year around. Like my vendors, right, they work

         20  only for summertime. After summer is over, what are

         21  people going to do? Maybe get permit all year-round,

         22  where they can work all year around. When the summer

         23  and ice cream is over, they can sell something else.

         24  If I get my permit for two years it would be nice

         25  for them, they got families to support. I got a lot
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          2  of people working, minorities, and that is exactly

          3  what I am saying. Thank you.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: Are they with you,

          5  of the same company?

          6                 MR. THIEBOUD: No.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: I will call them

          8  up. I will call you. Did you put in a slip?

          9                 MR. SCHREIBER: Yes.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: Okay. Are you also

         11  a manufacturer?

         12                 MR. SCHREIBER: Yes.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: Okay, so go ahead

         14  and testify.

         15                 Before we start, we are going to

         16  limit everyone to testify for three minutes. When

         17  you hear the sound, please stop your testimony.

         18                 MR. SCHREIBER: Okay, I am Joel

         19  Schreiber. I am affiliated with Ratner's Restaurant.

         20  We used to have multiple permits and they were taken

         21  away from us. Alfredo has multiple permits now, and

         22  that list I gave you, wherever it is checked off,

         23  there is 97 other companies that have multiple

         24  permits. And I don't understand why I don't have my

         25  multiple permits if these other companies were
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          2  issued them back?

          3                 I manufacture with Ratner's

          4  restaurant. We are a kosher product, we are on the

          5  streets, we serve a select group of people and I

          6  only have one license now and it is not fair that he

          7  should have multiple and I should only have one,

          8  when you brought this law forth that everybody

          9  should have just one license. I mean, if he has

         10  multiple, everybody should get their multiples back.

         11  It is not a fair issue.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: Okay.

         13                 MR. SCHREIBER: It is not a fair

         14  issue, okay?

         15                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: Okay.

         16                 Do you want to identify yourself for

         17  the record?

         18                 MR. SCHREIBER: I did. Joel Schreiber.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: No, no.

         20                 MR. SCHREIBER: Oh, I am sorry.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: Go ahead.

         22                 MR. RAD: Yes. My name is Alexander

         23  Rad. Thank you very much for letting me have this

         24  opportunity to explain what is going on in my

         25  situation, and representing others also with the
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          2  same terms.

          3                 I manufacture pretty much the same

          4  product that Alfredo does. Our permits have been

          5  taken away, which makes our business almost

          6  impossible to run. What we create after we were

          7  losing the permits is getting the vendors together,

          8  supply them with a product, trying to fix and

          9  resolve problems that they usually can get as an

         10  individual. But now also not only they took our

         11  permits away, which is affecting the extremely the

         12  side of people that either they have the permits

         13  before they manufacture the product, but also right

         14  now they are becoming with the restrictions from the

         15  streets, and I personally consider that very unfair.

         16                 All we want to know is, are you going

         17  to let us work? We have to get out of the business?

         18  Can you put us back in business? And I think this is

         19  the last opportunity we have today, and maybe if you

         20  reconsider this situation you can put some people

         21  either back in business or make the situation equal

         22  and fair for all of us.

         23                 As the way it is going right now it

         24  looks like they are going to close the whole City,

         25  and their explanations we still don't understand.
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          2  So, it is pretty much our last opportunity right

          3  here.

          4                 There are many individuals here when

          5  they get their permits they are not able to work

          6  comfortable under proper terms, because they don't

          7  have the infrastructure to move forward with that.

          8                 So, thank you very much for this

          9  opportunity to explain the situation.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: I just want to

         11  know, is your business the same as Alfedo's?

         12                 MR. RAD: I manufacture frozen

         13  lemonade and tropical brands.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: And you started out

         15  as a manufacturer and decided to sell it on the

         16  street?

         17                 MR. RAD: Correct.

         18                 Actually, I joined this company three

         19  years ago. I started with this business without

         20  anything, just with one pushcart and make a little

         21  bit of money and get another one, and three years

         22  ago I joined a partner with this manufacturing of

         23  the ice, and of course that year our permits were

         24  revoked and we just get one permit.

         25                 So what we did, we are trying to
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          2  decide, you know, we combine vendors together, but

          3  now the situation is I didn't even have a place to

          4  work.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: And your company

          6  manufactures here in the City of New York?

          7                 MR. RAD: Yes. I am on the lower east

          8  side. I am in the lower east side, Manhattan. We

          9  have been there for like, the company has been there

         10  for like 15, 16 years.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: How many people did

         12  you employ when you had the permits?

         13                 MR. RAD: Eighty persons. Around 80.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: And were these

         15  people seasonal?

         16                 MR. RAD: Pretty much seasonal. It was

         17  a seasonal business, but we was able to feed them in

         18  some other area of our business.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: What happened to

         20  these people that they are out of these permits now?

         21  Are they working? Are they working -- do they get a

         22  permit because the one permit per person?

         23                 MR. RAD: Some of them get permits,

         24  but some of them, they are not even working anymore

         25  on the street because it is not even worth it to
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          2  them to have a location, they get closed, they got

          3  to move somewhere which there is no traffic of

          4  people, and it is very hard to combine them all

          5  together when you don't have the permits. You know,

          6  I have been getting a lease, I have been leasing

          7  permits for up to $10,000 from an individual who has

          8  another job and doesn't care what is going on. And I

          9  think that is very unfair.

         10                 The business is actually dying, to be

         11  honest with you. You know, I am putting my heart on

         12  the table telling you are the last opportunity we

         13  have. We have nothing after this.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: Okay, thank you

         15  very much.

         16                 Thank you.

         17                 Michael Weiss. Are you representing

         18  all of the BIDs, speaking on behalf of all of the

         19  BIDs?

         20                 MR. WEISS: Yes, Councilman, I am. In

         21  fact, I would appreciate it if you would indulge me

         22  a little bit of time, rather than having all of the

         23  BIDs sign up and say the same thing over and over

         24  again, we just have one statement.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: Okay, no problem.
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          2                 MR. WEISS: My name is Michael Weiss

          3  and I wish to thank you for permitting me to testify

          4  on behalf of the BID Managers Association of New

          5  York City representing the 41 BIDs now in operation.

          6  My remarks were approved by unanimous vote at our

          7  regular meeting on March 18th, 1999.

          8                 I wish to recognize the presence of

          9  many of my colleagues who are in support of this

         10  position, including Matt Bauer from the Lower East

         11  Side District Management Association; Andy Manshell,

         12  Bryant Park 34th Street; Richard Giuliano, Lincoln

         13  Square BID; Mark Wursel, Grand Central Partnership;

         14  Tom Cusak, Fifth Avenue Association; Renee Giordano,

         15  Sunset Park Fifth Avenue; Jack Katz, Flatbush Avenue

         16  BID; Honey Klein, Village Alliance; Lisa Maluf,

         17  Madison Avenue BID; Sandy Garalick, Fashion Center

         18  BID; Ted Ranz, Myrtle Avenue BID; George Sanchez --

         19                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: You just jumped

         20  over Sandy  Garalick, where is Sandy? God bless you,

         21  you are a good guy.

         22                 MR. GARALICK: Thank you very much.

         23                 MR. WEISS: Shari Delabor, from the

         24  Times Square BID; Millie Silverstein, Kings Highway

         25  District Management Association, and Liz Luskin from
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          2  the Alliance for Downtown New York are all with us

          3  here today.

          4                 First, it is important to note that

          5  our position is not anti-vendor. In fact, today's

          6  hearing puts us in the unique position of Business

          7  Improvement Districts asking the Council to adopt

          8  legislation, although not Intro. 511, that just

          9  might be supported by a significant segment of the

         10  vendor community, 1,500 members of the Five Borough

         11  Independent Food Vendors Association, later today

         12  you will hear from the representative, Catina

         13  Despos.

         14                 Our proposal, if adopted, which

         15  substantially increased the number of available

         16  spaces for vending, including those in some of the

         17  most heavily pedestrian areas of the City, namely in

         18  Midtown Manhattan. We believe that a comprehensive

         19  and rational system of assigning vendors to specific

         20  locations will allow for opening up previously

         21  prohibited areas for vendors, allowing for an

         22  enforceable code that permits both vendors and

         23  merchants who lease or own off street commercial

         24  stores to co-exist.

         25                 To this end, we have recently drafted
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          2  a statement of principle that we are submitting to

          3  you today, which we and other groups believe are

          4  essential to a new system of vendor regulations.

          5                 They will produce a fair and

          6  equitable approach that allows customers easy access

          7  to vendors without placing an undue burden on all

          8  other aspects of street life.

          9                 We are pleased that Intro. 511 seeks

         10  to establish assigned locations, or warrants for

         11  specific vendors and contemplates limiting the

         12  density of vendors on particular streets.

         13                 These are crucial elements of any

         14  successful revamping of vendor rules.

         15                 Intro. 511 also takes the key step of

         16  including graphic vendors in the warrant system

         17  which is essential to the success of any future

         18  system.

         19                 Other elements, however, do cause

         20  considerable concern.

         21                 Street vendors and its associated

         22  problems used to be confined largely to Midtown.

         23  However, as most of you know, the economic

         24  resurgence in other areas of the City over the past

         25  ten years, the vending issue now confronts
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          2  communities throughout the City.

          3                 To best address the concerns of these

          4  communities, any new system must be a simple and

          5  clear as possible to facilitate both vendor

          6  compliance and City enforcement.

          7                 Unfortunately Intro 511 does not meet

          8  this goal with respect to several key elements.

          9                 First, the street list, for the sake

         10  of a better system, the City's community of business

         11  and property owners, is willing to make major

         12  concessions of easing vendor restrictions on many

         13  streets, especially in Midtown, if the resulting

         14  system represents fair and real improvement over

         15  current conditions.

         16                 In this respect the street list

         17  proposed in 511 is inadequate in its omission of

         18  some of the most sensitive areas: for example, 47th

         19  Street in Manhattan, between Fifth and Sixth Avenue,

         20  and Broadway between 32nd Street and 52nd Street,

         21  Seventh Avenue between 46th and 57th and Kings

         22  Highway between Ocean Avenue and Ocean Parkway.

         23                 Any bill based on this list would not

         24  be fair to all concerned parties. We appreciate your

         25  acknowledging that the list needs work, and trust
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          2  that we can work together to devise a mutually

          3  satisfactory list. We refer you to the list of

          4  streets in Intro. 110, which while different from

          5  that in Intro. 511 still represents an enormous

          6  cutback from current restrictions. Any new vending

          7  system must address this current system's key

          8  problem, it is so complex as to be essentially

          9  unenforceable. The simpler and more unified system

         10  benefits the vendors, the communities and the

         11  enforcers. The first step, whenever possible,

         12  wherever possible is to develop regulations that

         13  apply uniformly to both food and general vendor.

         14                 Preserving the bifurcated system as

         15  Intro. 511 proposes, simply continues the current

         16  complexity and thus provides no improvement for

         17  either vendors who must comply with these confusing

         18  rules, enforcement personnel who must apply them, or

         19  the public who must live with the sidewalk chaos

         20  that rules foster.

         21                 511 clearly recognizes the signing

         22  actual physical locations as a critical component of

         23  the new system; however, we are concerned about the

         24  lack of enforceable limits on vendor density. Given

         25  the number of blockfaces that people are willing to
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          2  see derestricted, even the adoption of a one-vendor

          3  per intersection rule substantially more desirable

          4  locations will become available to vendors.

          5                 Higher densities will serve as a

          6  disincentive to giving up more locations and may

          7  ultimately result in fewer options for vendors.

          8                 The two on a corner, three at an

          9  intersection provision in Intro. 511 permits too

         10  many vendors in a given area to effectively control

         11  congestion to protect the public welfare.

         12                 It would, for example, triple the

         13  number of vendors in Midtown without giving adequate

         14  relief on restricted streets. Intro. 511 defines a

         15  corner to permit vending within ten feet of either

         16  side of an intersection. This directly contradicts

         17  the Administration's clear corner policy, and

         18  infringes on the crosswalk, thus illegally blocking

         19  access to the crosswalk and curb cuts by pedestrians

         20  and the disabled.

         21                 This area is currently off limits to

         22  vendors, so this definition expands rather than

         23  limits the areas available on a given block for

         24  vending.

         25                 As written, it is unclear how many
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          2  vendors 511 permits for blockface. The proposal

          3  permits a vendor to request a blockface warrant.

          4                 This"A" is not further explained so

          5  that it is not clear that there are any limits on

          6  the total number of vendors on a single block grant.

          7                 This raises the concern that the

          8  mid-block vendors would outnumber the corner

          9  vendors, leaving virtually no density restrictions

         10  in effect.

         11                 Finally, warrants issued for

         12  specified time periods will permit different vendors

         13  or even types of vendors to hold the same location

         14  at different times. This raises concerns again about

         15  the ease of enforcement by forcing the police to

         16  keep track of multiple vendors for a single

         17  location.

         18                 An essential element of any viable

         19  system is a clear link between the vendor operating

         20  at a location and the right to hold a permit and the

         21  warrant the vendor is operating under.

         22                 As currently written, 511 threatens

         23  to undermine this by not requiring, at least in the

         24  rules governing multiple permit holders, a

         25  designated vendor to operate at a designated
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          2  location, where more than one vendor is operating at

          3  a location under the same warrant and permit,

          4  effective enforcement of the rules, accountability

          5  for violations thereof simply does not exist.

          6                 We believe that any successful

          7  vending system must provide for the development of

          8  cart design standards.

          9                 These standards serve two purposes.

         10  First they promote aesthetic considerations, and

         11  then, more importantly, they quickly establish

         12  whether a cart is complying with the size and other

         13  regulations.

         14                 As such, design standards are

         15  essentially an element of an easily obeyed, easily

         16  enforceable vending system. Unfortunately, although

         17  cart design is referred to in the bill, the method

         18  for implementing these standards does not seem

         19  effective.

         20                 For example, the design guidelines

         21  can be established only by unanimous committee vote.

         22  The amount of text devoted to what happens if no

         23  designs are developed indicates that even the bill's

         24  drafters understood that this mechanism was unlikely

         25  to generate any design standard.
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          2                 The Street Vending Committee proposed

          3  by 511, as both to its composition and

          4  responsibilities, is also highly problematic.

          5                 For any vending system to be truly

          6  comprehensive, it must include all parties,

          7  including disabled vets. When a system is ultimately

          8  agreed to by all parties, we would be willing to

          9  work with members of the Council and the

         10  Administration to press for changes in the state law

         11  that would govern disabled vending and bring them

         12  into line with the new City regulations.

         13                 Finally, we have serious concerns

         14  about the restoration of multiple permits. The bill

         15  as written may lead to the same problem which led to

         16  the demise of multiple permits some years ago.

         17                 In addition to these major concerns,

         18  there are numerous minor and technical issues we

         19  would like to raise at an appropriate time. Thus, we

         20  would ask the Committee to delay moving forward with

         21  this legislation until such time as these matters

         22  can be addressed.

         23                 To be clear, we cannot support Intro.

         24  511 in its current form. We hope this review of

         25  Intro. 511 is helpful, and once again, we offer to
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          2  work with the Committee and its staff to fashion a

          3  bill that meets the needs of our constituents and

          4  our customers.

          5                 Thank you.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: Thank you. I note

          7  there is one question, but before I let Council

          8  Member DiBrienza speak, I just want you to know, and

          9  we said it before, we have met and I will continue

         10  to meet and I know this is a very sensitive issue. I

         11  know that everybody is going to be happy at the end,

         12  and we will try to be fair, like we have done in the

         13  past and to keep in mind that we want, we understand

         14  the delicate balance of the needs of the BIDs, on

         15  the other hand we also understand the needs of small

         16  manufacturers, people who provide jobs or are trying

         17  to earn a living, like the gentlemen, all of them

         18  before, basically would be put out of business, and

         19  I don't want to see a business like that go out when

         20  they struggled so hard, invested to put their

         21  livelihood, they put their life's savings inside and

         22  invested in it and that they should be put out of

         23  business.

         24                 So, we understand, and I can

         25  appreciate that we will try to come to some sort of
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          2  delicate balance. Some sort of way of compromising

          3  that everybody could be happy.

          4                 Thank you.

          5                 MR. WEISS: Again, Councilman, I am

          6  sure you understand that what we are proposing

          7  would, if enacted, would open up streets to vendors

          8  and would increase the number of vendors

          9  substantially, the number of, in fact, very

         10  lucrative locations of vendors.

         11                 So, again, we are not saying that

         12  there is no room for vending in New York City, but

         13  with a rational system in fact could be expanded.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: We agree.

         15                 Okay, Council Member DiBrienza.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER DiBRIENZA: Thank you.

         17                 With a great deal of respect for the

         18  work that you have always done, Mike, and whatever

         19  assignment you have had both in and out of

         20  government, I am a little confused. And you

         21  represent a group of BIDs, I am not exactly sure why

         22  that means that your presentation is anything more

         23  than an interest group presentation.

         24                 In other words, it sounds as if you

         25  are representing part of our government. Your
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          2  Business Improvement District is important, as you

          3  all individually and collectively are, but you are

          4  an interest group, so I am not so sure I understand

          5  the tenor of the presentation as, you know, what you

          6  would allow and not allow and so on. I don't really

          7  follow that.

          8                 Is this an issue of protecting the

          9  businesses within all of those businesses? Or is

         10  this your opinion about whether New Yorkers like

         11  vendors or is it your opinion about congestion? What

         12  drives this much vehemence among, I really would

         13  like to understand what drives this much vehemence

         14  among the BIDs to this issue? Why is this issue so

         15  important?

         16                 I am not sure that deserves any

         17  applause but --

         18                 MR. WEISS: Well, you know that I came

         19  from community work in government, and I am doing

         20  BID work now, and I personally wouldn't be

         21  supporting anything that I didn't think was --

         22  first, yes, there is the interest in my members and

         23  constituents, but also what is good government.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER DiBRIENZA: No, no,

         25  meaning, in other words, am I just to hear another
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          2  interest group's point of view? That's fine. Or am I

          3  to sort of hear it is about traffic flow, because we

          4  are on the streets and we see it? Or am I here -- we

          5  have a bunch of little stores and they lose some

          6  money because there is other vendors outside -- I

          7  don't think you would say that, but I mean, what is

          8  the driving force to this issue?

          9                 MR. WEISS: Well, interestingly enough

         10  I would say the last statement. We have, for

         11  example, in Metrotech 40 food operations inside of

         12  buildings, okay, retail, commercial establishments,

         13  40 food operations, anything from hot dogs to table

         14  cloths. Those merchants are certainly affected by

         15  vending that would take, food vending that would

         16  take place out in the streets, and general vending

         17  because many of the stores there sell the same, very

         18  same goods.

         19                 But my sense is there needs to be a

         20  balance, that we feel in our area, for example, that

         21  there can be vending out on the street, it just

         22  needs to be regulated in such a way that nobody is

         23  overwhelmed.

         24                 In addition to the issues of

         25  congestion, traffic and safety, which even in our
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          2  area but certainly in Manhattan are important. There

          3  are certain areas that are just not appropriate to

          4  vending because of safety traffic and congestion

          5  reasons.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER DiBRIENZA: Right.

          7                 MR. WEISS: So it is really a little

          8  of everything that is the interest here.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: You can continue

         10  your question, I just need to take a vote because

         11  there is a meeting going on that some of the members

         12  have to be at.

         13                 We will take, first of all, Reso 600,

         14  we will vote separately. And then we will couple 520

         15  and 525, Intros. 520 and 525.

         16                 Reso 600 first.

         17                 COUNCIL CLERK CHERRY: Dear.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: Yes.

         19                 COUNCIL CLERK CHERRY: Freed.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER FREED: Yes.

         21                 COUNCIL CLERK CHERRY: Miller.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER MILLER: Yes.

         23                 COUNCIL CLERK CHERRY: Lopez.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Yes.

         25                 COUNCIL CLERK CHERRY: Rodriguez.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: Yes.

          3                 COUNCIL CLERK CHERRY: Nelson.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: Yes.

          5                 COUNCIL CLERK CHERRY: Stabile.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER STABILE: Yes.

          7                 COUNCIL CLERK CHERRY: By a vote of

          8  seven in the affirmative and none in the negative,

          9  with no abstentions, Reso 600 is adopted.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: Oh by the way, you

         11  reminded me, I forget we are in a new term and we

         12  have some new members on the Committee. Council

         13  Member Margarita Lopez, and Council Member Nelson,

         14  two new members to our Committee, one new member to

         15  the City Council. I welcome you both to this

         16  committee. And those know that the workings of this

         17  committee is that everybody is involved, any of your

         18  legislation or any ideas that you have, please bring

         19  them forward. I always say this is the best

         20  Committee in the City Council because if you open up

         21  a newspaper and said to me when I was contemplating

         22  which committee to take, and the former chair said

         23  to me, Noach, when you open up a newspaper you

         24  always see every day three stories on

         25  transportation, so you know this is a Committee that
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          2  is involved and tries to help people and we work

          3  together.

          4                 So, welcome, both of you, and we look

          5  forward to working with you.

          6                 Now we are coupling 520 and 525,

          7  Intros.

          8                 COUNCIL CLERK CHERRY: Dear.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER DEAR: Yes.

         10                 COUNCIL CLERK CHERRY: Freed.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER FREED: Yes.

         12                 COUNCIL CLERK CHERRY: Miller.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER MILLER: Yes.

         14                 COUNCIL CLERK CHERRY: Lopez.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Yes.

         16                 COUNCIL CLERK CHERRY: Rodriguez.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: Yes.

         18                 COUNCIL CLERK CHERRY: Nelson.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: Yes.

         20                 COUNCIL CLERK CHERRY: Stabile.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER STABILE: Yes.

         22                 COUNCIL CLERK CHERRY: By a vote of

         23  seven in the affirmative, none in the negative, with

         24  no abstentions, Intros. 520 and 525 are adopted.

         25  Please sign the reports.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: Leave open the vote

          3  because there are other members still at another

          4  meeting and we will have them here when we continue.

          5                 Okay, continue questioning.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER DiBRIENZA: Thank you,

          7  Mr. Chairman.

          8                 I just have two other questions.

          9                 In terms of the treatment of

         10  different vendors, wouldn't it be correct if the

         11  food vendors are not just arbitrarily in a separate

         12  category but booksellers and artists and the like,

         13  folks who have certain constitutional rights have to

         14  be treated differently, and that they are not the

         15  same burden physically or otherwise on the traffic

         16  congestion and/or even the stores that sell food. I

         17  don't understand that one, that you really as a

         18  group want to be treated the same when in fact there

         19  are two different categories.

         20                 MR. WEISS: Well, in terms of

         21  enforcement, one of the problems has been that it

         22  has never been, there has never been a system that

         23  is clear as to where vending could or could not take

         24  place, and in the absence of that system there is

         25  just lack of enforcement, people don't know how to
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          2  sort that out.

          3                 Our sense is that if you set up a

          4  table or have a cart, that is still a physical

          5  presence on the street which when you get the

          6  congestion and safety issues creates a similar

          7  problem. We do have built into the legislation, for

          8  example, 110, that we had supported. A system

          9  whereby those vendors would get priorities, let's

         10  say First Amendment vendors would get those

         11  priorities, disabled vets would get certain

         12  priorities in terms of a lottery system for

         13  assignment of spots. That is a rational system that

         14  allows for some prioritization and yet creates an

         15  environment where you can enforce the rules,

         16  otherwise we are just spinning wheels passing laws.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER DiBRIENZA: I just

         18  think that whatever laws we do or don't pass, we

         19  have certain hierarchy in our structure and there

         20  are certain constitutional rights that exist and so

         21  I think that they almost have to be treated

         22  separately. But I am exploring all of this to find

         23  out where I want to come out, and the final one --

         24                 MR. WEISS: Councilman, on the first

         25  amendment, if you are on the street and you are
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          2  handing out literature, if you have it on your back,

          3  on your person and you are giving things out, no

          4  restrictions --

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER DiBRIENZA: Right.

          6                 MR. WEISS: We agree with that. When

          7  you set up a table, when you are taking space off of

          8  the City's sidewalks, that is where the issue comes

          9  in.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER DiBRIENZA: I think it

         11  is a questionable issue.

         12                 The final one is, if it is about

         13  traffic and congestion and so on, why would it

         14  really matter to your organization, your interest

         15  groups, whether one person was in one spot and it

         16  was the same physical person every day, or if it was

         17  a person in the morning and a different person in

         18  the afternoon, and if it were the same total number

         19  and the same restricted grid and so on, I mean there

         20  was a fair system, why would the actual internal

         21  operations matter to you, whether one person had one

         22  or two permits or two locations, had some workers or

         23  some ownership or some combination, why would any of

         24  the internal operations matter to your interest

         25  group?
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          2                 MR. WEISS: Well, it sort of gets that

          3  enforceability again. I can give you an example of a

          4  vendor in our area who has a legitimate permit to be

          5  at a certain location and leases, in effect, or

          6  whatever you want to call it, space on his table to

          7  other people who do not have permits.

          8                 Unless you have the permit and a

          9  warrant with a photograph that says this person is

         10  supposed to be here, then you have set up a

         11  situation where you get an underground kind of

         12  business going on of who belongs where. And again,

         13  it makes it almost impossible to enforce.

         14                 So, those are the things we should

         15  discuss after this but there may be ways for

         16  accommodating your problem, or your issues and ours.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER DiBRIENZA: I am just

         18  gathering in the facts. I think this is an area that

         19  has gotten enormously more attention than in the

         20  relative scheme of things it deserves, or it

         21  warrants, no pun intended, that in fact this is a

         22  relatively simple issue and not to solve, not to

         23  solve, but the basic threshold issue about vending

         24  which has been around forever and which helps some

         25  folks, some folks like it and some folks don't, and

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            39

          1  COMMITTEE ON TRANSPORTATION

          2  it just seems to me that we are into this whole kind

          3  of drive to overregulate in this area, you know, in

          4  an administration that wants to do away with

          5  regulations everywhere else. It is just interesting

          6  to me.

          7                 So, I appreciate your responses. They

          8  are helpful, as I try to figure out, I am no longer

          9  a member of the Committee, I was at the beginning of

         10  my term, where I come down on all of this. But I

         11  think that in general the greatest number of streets

         12  perhaps with some restricted amount of vendors per

         13  street, rather than closing streets, is the better

         14  way to go. After that I think it just gets to be a

         15  matter of interest groups competing and I am not so

         16  sure that is our job. We can listen to you as

         17  interest groups, but I am not sure we have to -- you

         18  know, it is not like we are balancing the needs of

         19  two governmental entities. We are basically, the

         20  Chairman and all of the members are listening to

         21  interest groups. I mean, that is a little bit of a

         22  difficult position to be in for us.

         23                 Thank you.

         24                 Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

         25                 MR. WEISS: Thank you.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: Thank you very

          3  much.

          4                 Council Member Stabile.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER STABILE: I have a

          6  question. In any of the bids that you are

          7  representing, as you stated to us, would they be

          8  opposed to vending in a flea market atmosphere, say

          9  they entered a lot or a vacant lot and vended out of

         10  the vacant lot, other than in the street corners or

         11  in the streets? How would the BIDs relate to that?

         12                 MR. WEISS: All we are confining our

         13  discussion here to is on-street vending now. And

         14  that would be a local issue, and I think it would be

         15  up to the people in that local community to make

         16  decisions about.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER STABILE: Okay, but I

         18  am asking you as the BID, who is representing other

         19  BIDs, how would you feel about that? Would you

         20  consider that a problem with the BIDs, having a

         21  vacant lot somewhere in a block within your BID

         22  area, if someone wanted to put up ten vending

         23  stands, would that be a problem for you?

         24                 MR. WEISS: Not necessarily. Again,

         25  there might need to be some regulation, sales tax,
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          2  whatever. But certainly the congestion safety issue

          3  would be taken off the table in a case like that.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER STABILE: Okay, thank

          5  you.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: Thank you very

          7  much.

          8                 George Marcos.

          9                 Dan Rossi.

         10                 I just want to make a statement. It

         11  is interesting, the exchange between Council Member

         12  DiBrienza and Mike Weiss. The day, or around the

         13  days there was a strike there was no vendors on the

         14  street I happened to visit a big company in New

         15  York, someone whose headquarters were in New York,

         16  and they are all over the country, and the head or

         17  the CEO of the company was letting me know how

         18  pleasant it was for his people to find that they

         19  couldn't find a cart that day to buy food or

         20  whatever it may be. And I asked him the question, I

         21  was a little surprised, I figured he owned the

         22  building, large company, I figured that he would be

         23  opposed to any vendor near his particular building,

         24  and his answer to me was, if they want to put all

         25  the vendors in front of my place let it happen. He
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          2  feels it is unfair because many people literally

          3  live on these carts and are finding it difficult,

          4  especially if they work in midtown or uptown and try

          5  to buy their lunch, they can't afford $25 lunches at

          6  minimum, they want to go for the carts and it is

          7  something important to them. And I made a few other

          8  phone calls and I realized that there are a lot of

          9  people that feel that way. There are people who

         10  understand that not everybody, the fact that the

         11  cart is a necessity, it is not just a luxury or an

         12  extra bonus, it is a necessity to a lot of people,

         13  office workers who are living from paycheck to

         14  paycheck. And I have always kid that I wish I could

         15  taste the carts, but there are no Kosher carts. I

         16  always say the next time -- well, there are a few

         17  now, but I have to find them -- so, the next time

         18  when you start putting out these carts, find ones

         19  that I can eat from also so I can enjoy the same

         20  luxury that some other people do so I don't have to

         21  pay $15 of $20 for my lunch, I can buy it for $2

         22  too.

         23                 Go ahead.

         24                 MR. ROSSI: Good morning, Councilman.

         25  My name is Dan Rossi, Vice President of Big Apple
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          2  Food Vendors Association.

          3                 Last May or June we were here and

          4  when we left this hearing, we had decided that we

          5  were going to come up with some sort of a compromise

          6  and get the BIDs involved, the food vendors

          7  involved, every part of this industry was going to

          8  sit down and come up with some kind of a plan to

          9  stop the wars that are going on. And we had, I would

         10  imagine, 15 to 20 meetings with Council, we went

         11  with the BIDs separately, jointly, every branch of

         12  the vending industry was there, food vendors,

         13  artists, book vendors, general merchandise, they had

         14  spoken to the disabled veterans, and we didn't come

         15  up with the greatest plan in the world but we more

         16  or less left it in the hands of the Council to look

         17  at what was on the table. The only objections that

         18  we really came down to between the BIDs and the

         19  vendors, was how many carts on an intersection. What

         20  we went and did with the advice of the Council is we

         21  went out and we completely mapped Manhattan. We

         22  showed every type of vendor, we counted, we showed

         23  streets that you couldn't vend on, hydrants, you

         24  name it, it took us weeks and weeks to do this. And

         25  then we threw it on the table of the Council and
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          2  said that we recommend four, the Council said we say

          3  three. Give it a shot.

          4                 When it came to the point of warrants

          5  and lotteries, we have been opposed to that from the

          6  very beginning. We do not want anyone to say this is

          7  it, but I understand the other end of it. We are

          8  legitimate working people. We don't go around

          9  breaking heads and all of that nonsense. But there

         10  are legitimate concerns on the other end, and I

         11  actually sat down with other companies and I asked

         12  them, is there muscling going on, is there nonsense

         13  going on? And they said every now and then a new

         14  vendor will come into an area and there is a

         15  problem.

         16                 So, our recommendation is, if in fact

         17  this City is going to go into some kind of a warrant

         18  system, it has got to be a second option. What we

         19  would like the City to do is put a given number of

         20  carts, set it, there is going to be three, four

         21  carts on an intersection, everyone here knows how to

         22  count to four, they go to an intersection, there is

         23  four, the fifth guy leaves. If after a given time

         24  that there are problems, police reports, with

         25  vendors fighting each other, then go into the
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          2  Committee, the Street Vendor Committee, and let's go

          3  down and let's see if there really is a problem

          4  where a warrant system is necessary.

          5                 In reference to permits, three years

          6  ago we came here and this Council took away the

          7  permits from 170 legitimate companies. Between then

          8  and now you have given back all of the permits to 97

          9  companies, and there are 73 companies that don't

         10  have permits. We don't know how that magic happened

         11  and the three gentlemen that were up here before

         12  don't know why if they are manufacturing the exact

         13  same product that only one of them has got back

         14  their company and not the other two.

         15                 So, our proposal there is every

         16  company that can prove they legitimately operated

         17  their company prior to 1995 should be given a chance

         18  to come back. When they do come back, to go under

         19  the new guidelines of the City where you have to be

         20  a manufacturer or a distributor of a food product.

         21                 The companies that come back should

         22  also be given the chance, like any other business in

         23  this country, that you could sell your business. I

         24  am sure Alfredo, when he had 60 and he wanted to

         25  give up his business to his daughter, he would like
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          2  to leave it to his daughter, he can't even do that

          3  since he is the stockholder. He is going to work his

          4  whole life and not have anything when he is done. I

          5  have never heard of this. I doubt if there are any

          6  restaurants or any type of business here that

          7  doesn't have the vision where if they are successful

          8  and it is time to go they could sell their business.

          9  I have never heard of it. This is unique for our

         10  industry.

         11                 The streets that we were talking

         12  about being closed, I have worked very closely with

         13  the disabled veterans and I hope manufactured a plan

         14  that is used for them.

         15                 Three years ago I sat down with some

         16  assemblyman and I said, listen, there is just so

         17  many, a handful of disabled veterans. Open the

         18  streets to them, not all the streets. There is 42nd

         19  Street, 34th Street, 57th, you keep them closed, you

         20  keep Rockefeller Center closed, these are unique

         21  areas, and let it be one disabled veteran on a

         22  blockface.

         23                 After three years of negotiating they

         24  came up with exactly what I had mapped out for them.

         25  What I am saying, if the State of New York says that
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          2  these streets are restricted, then they are not only

          3  restricted to disabled veterans but to us, and that

          4  would more or less conform which streets are legal

          5  and which streets are not legal. We are just trying

          6  to come up with how they guess.

          7                 I mean, I sat in on a hearing with

          8  the panel, and a year ago 169 streets were deemed

          9  congested.

         10                 The very next day I sat with Rudy

         11  Washington and the list went down to 100. I don't

         12  know what magician walked in that room and said 69

         13  streets are now magically not congested but it

         14  happened. And these 100 streets have been enforced.

         15                 In another month, I am waiting to get

         16  the list right now from the business services. They

         17  are talking about another 300 streets that are going

         18  to close. We have 400 vendors that have been

         19  disbursed right now into new areas, next week, on

         20  April 1st we got 800 more vendors hitting the

         21  streets that have temporary permits. Right now they

         22  had fights this morning on 37th Street. I could just

         23  imagine what is going to happen two weeks from now.

         24  I know fruit vendors are sleeping on their carts

         25  from 2:00 in the morning. You don't treat people
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          2  like animals and that is what you are doing here,

          3  you are hurting us, into a little area.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: Okay, so, could you

          5  please --

          6                 MR. ROSSI: Okay.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: We have a few other

          8  people. I allowed you a few extra minutes because --

          9                 MR. ROSSI: There was one other thing.

         10  With all of the meetings that we had with the Health

         11  Department committees, this introduction speaks

         12  nothing of health. So the aesthetics and the new

         13  cart design that has to be done with the Health

         14  Department, because many of the carts out there

         15  don't work.

         16                 And we also recommend that every

         17  vendor goes to some kind of hygiene and food

         18  protection course. It doesn't have to be 15 hours. A

         19  couple of hours. Let these people know that they

         20  have to wear gloves.

         21                 When you hand something to someone in

         22  writing that says the rules, they don't read

         23  English. So we would like every vendor to go, just

         24  like any other course.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: Thank you.
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          2                 Just a roll call on first 600,

          3  Resolution 600 and then separately 520 and 525.

          4                 COUNCIL CLERK CHERRY: Eisland.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER EISLAND: Which one is

          6  this on, or is this all --

          7                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: 600.

          8                 COUNCIL CLERK CHERRY: Reso 600.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER EISLAND: Okay, I vote

         10  aye.

         11                 COUNCIL CLERK CHERRY: Intro. 520 and

         12  525.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER EISLAND: I vote aye as

         14  well.

         15                 COUNCIL CLERK CHERRY: The vote now is

         16  eight in the affirmative, none in the negative, and

         17  no abstentions, on all three items.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: Thank you.

         19                 Okay, Kenneth Rivera.

         20                 MR. RIVERA: Good afternoon, Council

         21  members.

         22                 My name is Ken Rivera, I am

         23  representing a disabled veteran peddler, by the name

         24  of Beazer Piteter, and I just would like to read you

         25  a statement that he has dated and signed.
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          2                 My name is Beazer Piteter. Thank you

          3  for the opportunity to speak in favor of Local Law

          4  511. I am a disabled veteran peddler, and a member

          5  of the advisory panel created by the state to

          6  promulgate rules to disabled veteran peddlers in New

          7  York City.

          8                 I would like to comment on two parts

          9  of Intro. 511. First the return of multiple permits,

         10  which should be done immediately. I believe it was

         11  the support given to disabled veterans by certain

         12  members of the Big Apple Food Vendor Association who

         13  were multiple permit holders that triggered the

         14  animosity toward them.

         15                 The Big Apple Food Vendors

         16  Association exposed a group of unscrupulous

         17  businessmen who were attempting to manipulate and

         18  defraud disabled veterans. These businessmen

         19  attempted to gain control of veteran permits to

         20  illegally lease them. These businessmen provided

         21  veterans guaranteed locations and protection of the

         22  veterans lease and purchase only their equipment and

         23  products, naturally at twice the street value.

         24                 Ironically, this Council protected

         25  these unscrupulous businessmen and blamed the

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            51

          1  COMMITTEE ON TRANSPORTATION

          2  members of the Big Apple Food Vendors Association

          3  falsely for this uscrupulous act.

          4                 Local Law 15 must be repealed

          5  immediately.

          6                 Secondly is the warrant system.

          7  Before any such system is created, there must be

          8  just cause.

          9                 The City should proceed with limiting

         10  four vendors per intersection. Enough time should be

         11  allowed to disperse and monitor the changes.

         12                 If these are police reports of

         13  threats or violence between vendors or locations,

         14  then the Street Vendor Committee could recommend the

         15  implementation of a warrant system.

         16                 Naturally, if any such system is

         17  enforced, disabled veterans should be granted any

         18  preferences according to state law.

         19                 This letter was signed and dated by

         20  Beazer Pieter, and I am here just representing him

         21  as a disabled veteran.

         22                 Thank you.

         23                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON EISLAND: Thank you

         24  very much.

         25                 MR. RIVERA: Thank you.
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          2                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON EISLAND: Cathy

          3  Glasson.

          4                 MS. GLASSON: Thank you.

          5                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON EISLAND: Good

          6  afternoon.

          7                 MS. GLASSON: Thank you. Good

          8  afternoon. My name is Cathy Glasson, I am here

          9  speaking on behalf of the Grand Street Merchants

         10  Residents Association.

         11                 We are focused on traffic and

         12  congestion issues.

         13                 Due to heavy pedestrian and vehicular

         14  traffic, Grand Street, between Broadway and Essex

         15  Street was restricted five years ago. Since that

         16  time, traffic has steadily increased, particularly

         17  in the vicinity of Grand and Mott Street. This area

         18  is inundated with commuter vans and buses, lines of

         19  waiting commuters, and stoopline stands obstructing

         20  pedestrian traffic flow. There is so much foot

         21  traffic here that people are literally --

         22                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON EISLAND: Lean

         23  forward a little bit and speak a bit louder.

         24                 MS. GLASSON: Sorry.

         25                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON EISLAND: Thank
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          2  you.

          3                 MS. GLASSON: There is so much foot

          4  traffic here that people are literally forced off

          5  the sidewalk and into the street. It has become so

          6  hazardous that the MTA is obstructing an additional

          7  stairway at the Grand Street Subway Station.

          8                 Moreover, emergency vehicles are

          9  delayed due to chronic gridlock when precious

         10  minutes can literally mean the difference between

         11  life or death.

         12                 The presence of vendors in such a

         13  congested area constitutes a threat to public safety

         14  and welfare, and it is precisely because of heavy

         15  pedestrian traffic that vendors are drawn to his

         16  area. For these reasons, it is baffling, to say the

         17  least, that a law intended to release sidewalk

         18  congestion would actually increase sidewalk

         19  congestion.

         20                 Intro. 511 proposes to remove the

         21  current restriction from Grand Street between

         22  Broadway and Essex Street. Intro. 511 also proposes

         23  to maintain an upgrade restriction for a section of

         24  Grand Street that has wider sidewalks, fewer

         25  pedestrians and no no congestion, the three blocks
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          2  between Essex and Clinton Streets.

          3                 We cannot understand the rationale

          4  for excluding the very crowded portions of Grand

          5  Street, as well as Mott Street, from Intro. 511.

          6                 This oversight condemns these streets

          7  to even more congestion and further danger. We

          8  implore the Transportation Committee to maintain the

          9  current restriction for Grand Street between

         10  Broadway and Essex Street, to include a food vending

         11  restriction seven days a week from 7:00 a.m. to 9:00

         12  p.m., and to apply these same restrictions to Mott

         13  Street, between Broome and Canal Street.

         14                 I thank you, and I have already

         15  submitted to the Sergeant-At-Arms written testimony

         16  from businesses and civic groups within this

         17  community. They couldn't come and I am just

         18  delivering that for them.

         19                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON EISLAND: The

         20  materials you gave us will be submitted to the other

         21  members as well.

         22                 MS. GLASSON: Thank you.

         23                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON EISLAND: Thank you

         24  very much.

         25                 Lieutenant Lou Turco.
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          2                 MR. TURCO: Good afternoon.

          3                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON EISLAND: Good

          4  afternoon. Will you please identify yourself.

          5                 MR. TURCO: Absolutely. My name is

          6  Lieutenant Louis Turco, I am the Special Operations

          7  Coordinator at the Fifth Precinct.

          8                 I am relatively new to the precinct

          9  and what I am here to discuss is Grand Street. Back

         10  in '94 it was restricted to general merchandise

         11  vendors from Broadway to Essex. Under the new

         12  proposal it was brought to my attention that they

         13  are looking to take the restriction off of it. Due

         14  to the amount of traffic for pedestrians and for

         15  vehicular traffic down on Grand Street, if we put

         16  more peddlers on that street, more people are going

         17  to be walking into the street. That area should be

         18  deemed restricted to peddlers for general

         19  merchandise and for food merchandise, just for the

         20  fact that we cannot control the amount of

         21  pedestrians down in that area.

         22                 I would like also to put into the

         23  fact that on Mott Street, between Canal and Worth,

         24  was restricted to also general merchandise and to

         25  food vendors. If we lift that restriction and put
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          2  the peddlers back on those streets, the amount of

          3  pedestrians that are down there on any given day is

          4  uncontrollable on those sidewalks. Those streets are

          5  not made for the amount of people that are down

          6  there. I think it is important that the Committee

          7  looks into that to protect tourism and protect the

          8  people that are driving down in that area because

          9  those streets cannot handle the amount of people

         10  walking on any given day.

         11                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON EISLAND: Just to

         12  be clear, are you testifying as an individual

         13  officer, on behalf of the precinct, or at the behest

         14  of anybody centrally?

         15                 MR. TURCO: In behalf of the precinct.

         16                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON EISLAND: Okay,

         17  thank you.

         18                 Council Member Freed, you had a

         19  question?

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER FREED: Actually more

         21  of a comment, because I was the one who initially

         22  got Grand Street restricted in '94, and I also was

         23  chagrinned to notice that it wasn't on the list, so

         24  I did submit a letter to the committee requesting

         25  that Grand Street between Broadway and Essex once
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          2  again be restricted, and also asking that Mott

          3  Street from Broome to Canal will also be restricted.

          4  So hopefully in the next version of the bill those

          5  will be included, because I know what a mess it is

          6  down there.

          7                 MR. TURCO: Thank you.

          8                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON EISLAND: Do you

          9  want to identify yourself, please?

         10                 MR. RUTELLA: Yes, Sergeant James

         11  Rutella, from the Fifth Precinct. I have nothing to

         12  add.

         13                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON EISLAND: Does

         14  anybody else have any other questions?

         15                 Thank you very much, gentlemen.

         16                 MR. TURCO: Thank you.

         17                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON EISLAND: Gus

         18  Haralampopoulos. Am I close in the pronounciation? I

         19  said am I close?

         20                 MR. HARALAMPOPOULOS: Good afternoon.

         21  My name is Constantine Haralampopoulos, and I am

         22  here on behalf of my family and the little people,

         23  the working class people.

         24                 Let me start by my parents, my dad,

         25  he has been a hot dog vendor on Fifth Avenue and
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          2  43rd Street, he has been there over 30 years, and

          3  now they are closing his street corner, and the guy

          4  is forced to leave, I don't know what he is supposed

          5  to do now, but I think it is very unfair, I don't

          6  know for what reason they are closing him, that he

          7  has to, and a lot of other people are going to get

          8  closed down and they are going to be looking for

          9  other corners, and a lot of fights. Why is this all

         10  taking place? You know, what kind of regulations are

         11  these? What is supposed to happen?

         12                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON EISLAND: We

         13  usually ask the questions, but if you are asking a

         14  question now, obviously we are trying to achieve a

         15  fair balance for the City, and that is what the

         16  purpose is for you to testify. So, if you would just

         17  give us your opinion.

         18                 MR. HARALAMPOPOULOS: All right.

         19                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON EISLAND: This is

         20  not a bill that has been promulgated by the City

         21  Council, this is a bill coming from the City

         22  Administration.  We are mandated to hold hearings

         23  and that is what we are doing.

         24                 MR. HARALAMPOPOULOS: Okay. And I hope

         25  they correct it very soon because there are a lot of
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          2  people, not everybody is rich. Most of the people

          3  want to get their lunch for -- you know, the wages

          4  are very low. I don't see any jobs being created,

          5  where are most of the people supposed to eat? Can

          6  they afford to eat $15 lunches, $20 lunches,

          7  whatever these restaurants are?

          8                 Well, I hope the people at least

          9  understand. The majority of the people, that this is

         10  wrong and that hopefully they correct this, because

         11  it is not right after 30 years to ask somebody to

         12  leave, and where are we supposed to go? Go and push

         13  somebody else off? It is definitely a fight in the

         14  works. Other people are going to be looking to fight

         15  with other people because everybody is going to --

         16  it doesn't make any sense to take the guy from this

         17  corner, he goes like 30 feet away, and he is going

         18  to be on another corner, and a whole line of other

         19  carts along that corner. I don't get the idea of

         20  what is happening here, everybody trying to get

         21  crunched on for one block, eventually trying to get

         22  rid of all of them and put their own kind, I just

         23  don't understand this now.

         24                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON EISLAND: I don't

         25  think I understand what you mean.
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          2                 MR. HARALAMPOPOULOS: What part don't

          3  you understand?

          4                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON EISLAND: I don't

          5  think there is any desire to get rid of any

          6  particular kind, as you put it. It is just the

          7  desire to get some kind of a balance as far as both

          8  business interest and make these streets passable

          9  and letting I see you present yourself as the little

         10  guy, which I think the Council has always been

         11  sensitive to and hopefully the little guy will still

         12  be able to make a living out on the street.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER MILLER: Madame Chair,

         14  if I may?

         15                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON EISLAND:  Council

         16  Member Miller.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER MILLER: Just to try to

         18  address your question just in a sort of factual way,

         19  so that you fully understand, what we are doing here

         20  today is considering a piece of legislation which

         21  attempts to address a lot of the questions that you

         22  are asking right there.

         23                 When you talk about Fifth and 43rd

         24  being closed in the imminent future, that is a

         25  decision that has been made, I mean I am not
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          2  familiar, but I am sure if you say it is true, it is

          3  true. But there are a bunch of streets that are

          4  being closed by the current Street Vendor Review

          5  Panel, which is comprised of a bunch of different

          6  people, mostly nominated by the Administration. This

          7  bill seeks to impose a new system upon -- I am not a

          8  sponsor of this bill at this time, but the bill that

          9  we are considering which is sponsored by the

         10  Chairman of this Committee seeks to propose a new

         11  system which would attempt to address your very

         12  points, that you don't want to close off all the

         13  streets, and you don't want to have all of the

         14  vendors being forced into one small block.

         15                 MR. HARALAMPOPOULOS: It doesn't make

         16  sense, does it?

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER MILLER: Well, that is

         18  what the sponsors of this bill would say, you are

         19  exactly right.

         20                 MR. HARALAMPOPOULOS: Okay, and most

         21  of the people, give them a number where they can

         22  call and give you their opinion too, because we are

         23  not all rich, you know? And we need to eat with $3

         24  and $5 for lunch. You know, the majority 75 percent

         25  are people who are not even working, there is no
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          2  jobs being created, you know, maybe the stock market

          3  is doing good and maybe some other businesses, but

          4  the little people, the working class people, what

          5  happens to them? Let's make some jobs, not take

          6  away.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER MILLER: Well, it's the

          8  concern of this Committee, this Council and the

          9  sponsors of the various bills that we are examining

         10  to try to strike the balance that you are talking

         11  about to try to address the needs of New Yorkers who

         12  like to shop and get their lunches and other

         13  products from street vendors, to accommodate the

         14  need of street vendors to make a living and what is

         15  an honest living, and one that has been a part of

         16  the Urban landscape of the City of New York for many

         17  generations, and also to accommodate the legitimate

         18  concerns of the businesses and business community

         19  and pedestrians who need to have access to corners

         20  and to be able to cross streets in a way that

         21  doesn't create a public safety nuisance.

         22                 So there is a bunch of different

         23  concerns that are involved and it is various

         24  attempts at various different pieces of legislation

         25  to see and understand what is happening here, to
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          2  address all of those needs in a fair and equitable

          3  fashion.

          4                 MR. HARALAMPOPOULOS: Okay, one more

          5  thing. I don't think it makes sense to take an old

          6  guy out and to put a new guy -- I mean, what is the

          7  difference? You are just kicking -- if we keep

          8  kicking the new, everybody who comes along, we kick

          9  them, who is ever going to stabilize anything then?

         10  You know, it is not giving anybody a chance, and

         11  that is why I figured that lotto thing, I think you

         12  should let the old people who have been there keep

         13  their spots, open up a lot of corners that aren't

         14  congested or whatever so this way we could create

         15  jobs, not take away.

         16                 Because as of right now, as of right

         17  now you are slicing, or whoever is doing it, is

         18  slicing a lot of people's throats.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: Okay, thank you.

         20                 MR. HARALAMPOPOULOS: Okay, thank you.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: Doreen Greenidge.

         22                 Robert Lederman.

         23                 MR. LEDERMAN: My name is Robert

         24  Lederman, I am the President of the Street ARTIST

         25  Group, Artists Response To Illegal State Tactics, I
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          2  was also the main plaintiff in the lawsuit that made

          3  it legal to sell art on the street.

          4                 We spent six years fighting Mayor

          5  Giuliani's police state and the unfair vending

          6  ordinance that this Council previously passed. I

          7  notice that the names keep changing on this bill,

          8  sort of like a hot potato that nobody really wants

          9  to take credit for, but all of the names that have

         10  been associated with it are people that are

         11  basically paid employees of the BIDs, the real

         12  estate industry.

         13                 And if you know something about the

         14  history of the BIDs, their predecessor was the Fifth

         15  Avenue Association, which was formed in the early

         16  decades of this century, to keep Jewish businessmen,

         17  Council Member Dear, from locating on Fifth Avenue,

         18  and their racist agenda hasn't changed one bit in

         19  the ensuing decades.

         20                 This City Council made two reports on

         21  the BIDs. Among the other things they put in those

         22  reports, they were hiring goon squads to beat up

         23  black homeless people.

         24                 Now, I just came from 12 days of

         25  demonstrating at One Police Plaza to protest the
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          2  murder of a fellow vendor, Amadou Diallo. It is

          3  quite ironic that I come here to this Council to

          4  testify about a new vending ordinance that itself

          5  will be a death warrant for vending in this City.

          6                 I notice every time I am going to be

          7  testifying at one of these hearings Council Member

          8  Freed scurries out of here. I would have liked to

          9  have addressed her face-to-face.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: She is still here.

         11                 MR. LEDERMAN: Good, I am glad she is

         12  still here.

         13                 Council Member Freed spent six years

         14  trying to destroy First Amendment protection for

         15  artists to prevent street artists from setting up in

         16  her district. She spent probably the same amount of

         17  time trying to keep Asian vendors from setting up in

         18  her district in Chinatown.

         19                 Now, this vending ordinance was

         20  written by the BIDs. I have talked that over with

         21  the BID directors themselves, with the lawyers to

         22  the City Council that worked on it, they very

         23  frankly admitted the ordinance was written by the

         24  BIDs. So what can we expect from the enemies of

         25  vending. This is their bill and those of you that
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          2  are sponsoring it are their employees. There is no

          3  nice way to say that. It is a fact, every person in

          4  this room, whether they are a vendor or a City

          5  Councilperson knows exactly what I am talking about.

          6                 Now, some of you City Council

          7  members, including Council Member Freed, made a very

          8  brave step -- don't cut me off because I am going to

          9  keep talking another minute. You let Dan Rossi and

         10  the BID director talk for 15 minutes.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: You will conclude

         12  your speech and move on.

         13                 MR. LEDERMAN: Some City Council

         14  Members a few days ago made this symbolic gesture of

         15  being arrested at One Police Plaza to protest Amadou

         16  Diallo's murder, but the fact is that some of those

         17  same City Council Members, like Freed, are

         18  participating in the elimination and ethnic

         19  cleansing of all of the minority vendors of this

         20  City.

         21                 Now if you want to know who this bill

         22  is mean to target, you don't have to go very far.

         23  Walk down Broadway right outside your offices --

         24                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: Conclude.

         25                 MR. LEDERMAN: -- It is black vendors
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          2  selling books about Martin Luther King, and Asian

          3  women who can't get a job --

          4                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: Thank you very

          5  much.

          6                 MR. LEDERMAN: -- In a sweatshop are

          7  selling stockings.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: Thank you very

          9  much.

         10                 MR. LEDERMAN: You folks can try to

         11  keep censoring us.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: That's all.

         13                 Miguel Centeno.

         14                 MR. CENTENO: Can you hear me?

         15                 Good afternoon. My name is Miguel

         16  Centeno, Assistant to Brooklyn Borough President

         17  Howard Golden.

         18                 I am pleased to have the opportunity

         19  to present President Golden's testimony, regarding

         20  Intro. 511, regarding the regulation of street

         21  vending. His testimony is as follows:

         22                 I am pleased that the City Council is

         23  moving ahead on its plans to regulate street

         24  vending. We must balance the need of street vendors

         25  to earn a living with a need to ensure pedestrian
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          2  and vehicular safety, to minimize pedestrian

          3  congestion with street furniture and to allow small

          4  business owners to conduct their business without

          5  undue competition.

          6                 I believe the small business owners

          7  are vital to job creation in stable neighborhoods,

          8  and therefore should not have to compete against

          9  street vendors who do not incur overhead costs as

         10  small business owners do.

         11                 In an attempt to balance these

         12  interests, I have worked with the City

         13  Administration and Council Member Una Clarke to

         14  develop a vendor market in Flatbush.

         15                 This market will permit vendors to

         16  sell their wares away from the street, thereby

         17  easing congestion and minimizing direct competition

         18  with merchants on Flatbush Avenue.

         19                 Such a program can only work,

         20  however, if there is a commitment to enhance

         21  enforcement.

         22                 These vendor markets, however, are

         23  only part of the solution to sensible regulation of

         24  street vending. Legislation regulating street

         25  vending must be fair, comprehensive and easy to
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          2  implement and enforce.

          3                 In this regard, Intro. 511 offers

          4  some constructive regulation of street vending.

          5                 First I believe that requiring all

          6  types of vendors to obtain warrants as authorization

          7  to vend at a designated location during its

          8  specified time period will help limit the density of

          9  vendors on particular streets, while facilitating

         10  enforcement by enabling authorized enforcement

         11  officials to determine quickly if a given location

         12  is available for vending.

         13                 I am also pleased to see that Intro.

         14  511 seeks to establish standards relating to the

         15  signs and configuration of pushcarts and stands.

         16  These standards will help to facilitate enforcement

         17  because it becomes easy to assess whether a vehicle

         18  complies with established regulations. These

         19  standards also help to improve the aesthetic nature

         20  of these vehicles.

         21                 Finally, I believe it is important

         22  that Intro. 511 continues current law and prohibits

         23  street vending on certain streets.

         24                 Many areas of Brooklyn have undergone

         25  an economic resurgence, which make them more
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          2  attractive to street vendors than they have been

          3  before.

          4                 Problems with excessive street

          5  vending clearly are not isolated to the Manhattan

          6  Central Business District. I am pleased to see that

          7  Intro. 511 acknowledges this problem and continues

          8  to keep many streets in Brooklyn vendor-free.

          9                 Unfortunately some elements of this

         10  bill are not constructive. The current list of

         11  prohibited streets still does not meet the needs of

         12  several key commercial areas in Brooklyn for

         13  protection from street vending.

         14                 For example, Graham Avenue and Kings

         15  Highway previously on the list where vending is

         16  prohibited, do not appear on Intro. 511's list.

         17                 Second, Intro. 511 does not address

         18  the important need to simplify the current street

         19  regulation system by maintaining different rules for

         20  general and food vending.

         21                 The current complex system makes it

         22  difficult both for vendors to comply with

         23  regulations and for enforcement personnel to enforce

         24  these provisions.

         25                 Vendor legislation must simplify the
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          2  enforcement system by developing regulations that

          3  apply equally to both general and food vendors.

          4                 Finally, I am concerned that

          5  permitting two vendors per corner and three per

          6  intersection, will lead to crowding and congestion

          7  on many Brooklyn streets. I would urge the Council

          8  to better control vendor density and ease pedestrian

          9  flow by allowing fewer vendors on corners and

         10  intersections.

         11                 I appreciate the difficulty of

         12  drafting vendor regulations that balance all

         13  interests involved. I commend the Council for taking

         14  such a step with the legislation that we are

         15  considering today. However, as I stated, Intro. 511

         16  falls short of the effective street vendor

         17  regulation in several key areas.

         18                 I urge the Council and Administration

         19  to continue an open dialogue with all affected

         20  parties in order to construct a bill that meets

         21  everyone's needs.

         22                 Thank you for the opportunity to

         23  present Brooklyn Borough President Howard Golden's

         24  testimony.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: Thank you.
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          2                 Katina Despas-Barous.

          3                 MS. DESPAS-BAROUS: My name is Katina

          4  Despas-Barous. I represent Five Borough Independent

          5  Food Vendor Association. Five Borough is a recently

          6  formed non-for-profit corporation, just comprised of

          7  vendor associations that have existed for years.

          8  Five Borough represents the interests of hundreds of

          9  vendors in the City Council's respective areas.

         10                 As Mr. Weiss has already mentioned, I

         11  speak today in support of hundreds of the vendors

         12  Five Borough represents; however, in addition to

         13  that support, I come before the City Council having

         14  already had discussions with the Business

         15  Improvement District Managers which represent

         16  several sections of our City.

         17                 And with the understanding based on

         18  those discussions, primarily with Mr. Thomas Cusak,

         19  President of the Fifth Avenue Association, that the

         20  BIDs are anxious to meet with our association for

         21  purposes of reaching an amicable compromise with

         22  regard to the street vendor legislation presently

         23  being considered by this Council.

         24                 To date, our preliminary discussions

         25  have been promising, and while the BIDs and Five
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          2  Borough have not reached an absolute compromise in

          3  our negotiations, thus far the vendors' major

          4  priorities have been acknowledged and we seem to

          5  have more in common than we have in opposition with

          6  the BIDs of our City.

          7                 Most common is our mutual opposition

          8  to proposition 511 being heard by the Council today.

          9  Due to the amount of time I have, I will simply

         10  highlight the two most troubling sections of 511.

         11                 The type of legislation proposed by

         12  511, specifically the readdition of the multiple

         13  full-term permit holders, was defined by the Higher

         14  Supreme Court as monopolization. Local Law 15 of

         15  1995 was enacted by this Council to correct this

         16  problem only four years ago. Our court agreed with

         17  the City Council at that time.

         18                 511's multiple permit holder clause

         19  will once again allow one or more permit holders to

         20  monopolize existing permits by charging exorbitant

         21  sums to others who lease carts from the. It will

         22  also once again decrease the spectrum of individuals

         23  that have had the privilege of owning their own

         24  cart.

         25                 Even Local Law 27 enacted by this
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          2  Council only two years ago reiterated that no

          3  multiple full-time permits would be allowed by

          4  legislation to prevent unreasonable leasings and no

          5  en massing of a large number of permits by one

          6  individual.

          7                 Even more devastating to the food

          8  vendor is a random selection process for issuing of

          9  warrants proposed by Section 20-474.5B2 of

         10  proposition 511.

         11                 This section and its corresponding

         12  subsection do not take into account the reality of

         13  the mobile street vendor, who only through

         14  recognition over years build their clientele at a

         15  particular location. To force these vendors to place

         16  the location they have worked on for some over 20

         17  years to an equivalent of a lottery is simply

         18  unfair.

         19                 Although those individuals have no

         20  property interest in their streets, they do

         21  contribute to the City's budget, their payment of

         22  taxes and this vital concern should be addressed.

         23  The above two areas are, as I mentioned only some of

         24  the members' objections to 511, other alternatives

         25  exist to this schematic. Our Association along with
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          2  the Business Improvement District, have begun

          3  working on such alternatives, including discussions

          4  which could alter the statement of principles

          5  submitted to you today, from one to two vendors per

          6  intersection at maximum. We will respectfully ask

          7  the Council to provide us with the opportunity to

          8  present this alternative proposition for your review

          9  and consideration.

         10                 Thank you.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: Thank you.

         12                 Martha Dansiger, and Marion Fox, I

         13  guess you are both from Community Board 3.

         14                 MS. FOX: Hello. My name is Marion

         15  Fox. I am a member of Community Board 3. I am also

         16  an officer of the Board of Chair of the Public

         17  Safety Sanitation Committee. I have lived in

         18  Community Board 3 area and served on the Board for

         19  many years.

         20                 Community Board 3 in Manhattan covers

         21  a diverse and heavily populated area, with strong

         22  residential and commercial concentrations.

         23                 Usually this makes for a vibrant,

         24  interesting street scene that has enjoyed resurgence

         25  in the last few years. On the other hand, there are
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          2  street conditions, usually illegal, that detract

          3  from the community and create serious public health

          4  and safety problems. Misplaced and poorly regulated

          5  vendor activities is one of these problems.

          6                 Community Board 3 appreciates the

          7  opportunity to address the City Council on the

          8  proposed legislation that will correct some of the

          9  current problems created by vending in

         10  over-saturated areas.

         11                 We support your effort to protect the

         12  living conditions of a community and the commercial

         13  initiatives of vendors. However, we cannot support

         14  the legislation as it is currently written, because

         15  it omits two critical areas in our community. The

         16  legislation currently proposes restrictions on Grand

         17  Street east of Essex Street and west of Broadway.

         18  That omits the area on Grand Street between Essex

         19  and Bowery in CB 3, and Bowery to Broadway in CB 2.

         20  These areas must be included in the legislation.

         21                 CB 3 has been on record in support of

         22  restrictions in this area for many years. Now that

         23  the Council is finalizing legislation, we want it to

         24  be comprehensive and effective for our community.

         25                 Community Board 3 also requests that
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          2  Mott Street, between Canal and Broome Street in CB 3

          3  and Mott between Canal and Chatham Square be

          4  included. We have extended our support for areas in

          5  the adjacent board CB 2, because without an areawide

          6  approach our gain will be their loss and vice-versa.

          7                 It is our hope that with the new

          8  vendor restriction legislation our neighborhood and

          9  others like ours will be able to enjoy vendors only

         10  where their commercial activities are wanted and

         11  suited to other street use, and that we will have no

         12  vending in areas that have suffered in the past,

         13  specifically Grand and Mott Street.

         14                 Thank you very much.

         15                 MS. DANSIGER: Hello. My name is

         16  Martha Danziger, and I am District Manager of

         17  Community Board 3 in Manhattan. I appreciate the

         18  opportunity to address the Council, and offer advice

         19  on improving, in my opinion, the proposed

         20  legislation regarding vendors.

         21                 My comments will expand the first

         22  statement made by the Board Member Marion Fox.

         23                 Specifically we are asking the

         24  Council to amend the proposed legislation to include

         25  two areas in our Board that need restrictions. These
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          2  areas are Canal Street, between Essex and Bowery and

          3  Mott between Canal and Chatham Square. We want these

          4  streets restricted because vending has been a

          5  problem in both areas. It negatively affects the

          6  businesses, obstructs pedestrian passage, creates

          7  unhealthy garbage disposal conditions and

          8  necessitates unsafe sidewalk conditions.

          9                 The businesses located on Grand

         10  Street in the Grand Street store fronts cannot

         11  operate effectively if vending is permitted. These

         12  businesses have sold house decorations for decades

         13  and they use their store windows to attract

         14  customers. The vendors block these stores.

         15                 Newer businesses, for instance, the

         16  food market that have store fronts also on Grand

         17  Street extend -- have store fronts that extend the

         18  sidewalks. Vendor activities reduce the sidewalk

         19  passage area and discourage customers.

         20                 There are areas in CB 3 where vending

         21  is welcome, for instance, Orchard Street. But this

         22  is only because the activity is well enforced and

         23  limited to one day a week.

         24                 In an effort to accommodate the

         25  hard-working but unwanted and unlicensed vendors in
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          2  Grand Street, Mott Street and Canal Street traffic

          3  islands, CB 3 approved a vendor market in the nearby

          4  portion of Sara Delano Roosevelt Park. And Council

          5  Member Freed took the initiative in that in trying

          6  to help the vendors.

          7                 Unfortunately, this proved to be a

          8  supervisional nightmare for the Parks Department and

          9  environmental disaster for the community.

         10                 However, the biggest tragedy was for

         11  the vendors who spent their life savings purchasing

         12  bogus permits for vending in the park.

         13                 Without the approval and support of

         14  the community, including the existing commercial

         15  interests, vendors have no security and become

         16  victims of dishonest turf brokers on streets like

         17  125th Street and parts of Chinatown.

         18                 The area on Canal Street is very

         19  attractive to vendors because it is in proximity to

         20  the Grand Street entrance to the subway. However, it

         21  is so overcrowded at rush hours that public safety

         22  cannot be ensured. The State elected officials led

         23  by Assemblyman Silver have secured funds to build a

         24  new entrance but that is not built yet and it is

         25  intended for the convenience of the riders, not for
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          2  the vendors.

          3                 As DM of this Board for a very long

          4  time, I have spent many years at district and

          5  borough service cabinet meetings discussing ways to

          6  improve street conditions for businesses and

          7  residents.

          8                 In many cases, wholesalers, vendors,

          9  peddlers, have changed the face of the community for

         10  the worst because residents cannot freely or safely

         11  use the sidewalks.

         12                 The issue is more than enforcement. A

         13  ban on vending is needed for certain areas, and in

         14  our community it is Canal and Mott Street.

         15                 Thank you.

         16                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON FREED: Thank you

         17  very much. As you know, I already put in a request

         18  to put back the restrictions on those streets.

         19                 MS. DANZIGER: I appreciate everything

         20  you do.

         21                 Thank you.

         22                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON FREED: Thank you.

         23                 The next witness will be Doreen

         24  Greenidge, for the Manhattan Borough President's

         25  Office.
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          2                 And while she comes up, I would like

          3  to welcome a group of students in the balcony. They

          4  are from the Satterwhite Academy, which is actually

          5  from 51 Chambers Street, directly across Chambers

          6  Street from City Hall, which incidently is also

          7  where my office is.

          8                 So, thank you very much, and welcome

          9  to our hearing, and if you find it interesting, as

         10  you can tell, we are thinking of passing a bill that

         11  deals with regulating street vendors.

         12                 So, thank you very much for being

         13  here, and I hope you have enjoyed your tour.

         14                 Okay, please proceed.

         15                 MS. GREENIDGE: Good afternoon,

         16  Chairman Dear, Council Member Freed, members of the

         17  Committee. I am Doreen Grennidge, Economic Policy

         18  Analyst for the Honorable C. Virginia Fields,

         19  Borough President of Manhattan.

         20                 I am here today to express the

         21  Borough President's support for comprehensive vendor

         22  legislation to regulate and administer the City's

         23  street vendors, as well as setting forth certain

         24  modifications she believes are necessary in the

         25  currently proposed legislation to ensure vendor

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            82

          1  COMMITTEE ON TRANSPORTATION

          2  compliance and sufficient flexibility.

          3                 The Borough President appreciates the

          4  great work of the Committee in struggling to address

          5  this highly volatile issue.

          6                 The proposal which includes court

          7  design standards and a warrant system which provides

          8  organization to vend at a specific location for

          9  easier enforcement takes a major step towards

         10  seizing the momentum fostered by recent public

         11  debate on this issue and proposing a constructive

         12  and beneficial system.

         13                 The Borough President would like to

         14  acknowledge the Business Improvement Districts of

         15  the City for the pivotal role in forging a possible

         16  solution to this issue. They have been willing to

         17  compromise while at the same time effectively

         18  advocating for the business community in order to

         19  move forward with this process.

         20                 The most important element of the

         21  proposed legislation is the establishment of a

         22  vendor committee which will have greater flexibility

         23  to make a rational review of areas that submit

         24  applications for closing.

         25                 The current system, which only
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          2  permits entirely closing streets to vending or

          3  leaving streets completely open, is woefully

          4  deficient and ineffectual. Giving the vendor

          5  committee discretion to restrict instead of merely

          6  prohibit addresses much of the criticism of the

          7  current system because it eliminates the all or

          8  nothing approach, something that will be to the

          9  benefit of vendors, other businesses, pedestrians

         10  and vendor customers.

         11                 The move towards established criteria

         12  to make such determinations will go a long way to

         13  address concerns about fairness and equity.

         14  Recommendations of the new vendor committee will

         15  then be referred to the Mayor and City Council for

         16  more open and inclusive legislation process for

         17  final determination upon the merits of the

         18  Committees recommendations.

         19                 However, the Borough President

         20  believes that the proposed bill would be

         21  strengthened if it more clearly set forth guidelines

         22  for the Committee to follow in making determinations

         23  on each street closing application. Such guidelines

         24  reasonably should including weighing the number and

         25  location of vendors per block in each individual
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          2  case, as well as traffic flow concerns, the width

          3  and length of the block to assure true pedestrian

          4  and patron accessibility.

          5                 It is the Borough President's

          6  understanding that though some major thoroughfares

          7  will remain closed for vending, there will be a

          8  number of streets which were previously closed, that

          9  will now be reopened to vending.

         10                 However, to provide accessibility to

         11  fast and low-cost meals for the general public and

         12  to ensure as many vending opportunities as possible,

         13  she urges that the number of streets be wholly

         14  closed to vending be kept at a minimum and be done

         15  only in the most extraordinary situations.

         16                 The Borough President also wishes to

         17  acknowledge that in crafting a solution, the

         18  Transportation Committee has not lost sight of the

         19  distinctly New York character of street vending.

         20                 As stated in the legislative findings

         21  for this bill, street vending contributes much to

         22  the City economy.

         23                 In addition, street vending has been

         24  a historical way for new entrepreneurs and

         25  immigrants to enter the marketplace, especially
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          2  those who enter the marketplace as independent

          3  vendors. All measures should be taken to assure that

          4  the individual vendor does not disappear from the

          5  City streetscape, which is particularly a concern,

          6  due to the continuing practice of issuing multiple

          7  permits.

          8                 The Borough President recommends that

          9  the selection of which vendor is allowed a

         10  particular location should include a preference for

         11  long-time vendors as one of the many criteria.

         12                 She also urges that measures be taken

         13  to address any additional cost which may be incurred

         14  by vendors in order to bring their vendor costs into

         15  conformity with any new standard cart design

         16  guideline that may be established.

         17                 In closing, the Borough President

         18  hopes that we may all continue to work together to

         19  ensure that comprehensive vendor legislation will

         20  finally become a reality and that it will finally

         21  produce a real and equitable solution for all

         22  vendors, as well as businesses in the community.

         23                 Thank you.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: Evangelos

         25  Papakostas. You are not here? Okay.
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          2                 Chris Ferencsik.

          3                 MR. FERENCSIK: Good afternoon,

          4  Councilman Dear and members of the Committee. I am

          5  here to support the legislation proposed today. I am

          6  a former street vendor, who started out selling ice

          7  cream and was adversely affected by Local Law 15. I

          8  used to operate a company that sold ice cream on the

          9  streets of New York, people used to look forward to

         10  seeing my pushcarts go out. We had the license to

         11  use the Good Humor trademark. Eventually Schrafts

         12  Ice Cream started to sell their products which were

         13  manufactured in New York, and I don't believe it was

         14  the intention of this Council to see my company go

         15  out of business.

         16                 Right now Big Apple Ice Cream is

         17  inactive, and we have no permits. I would appreciate

         18  the opportunity to go back into business again and

         19  therefore to sell products to the public, who used

         20  to appreciate seeing my carts come out seasonally.

         21                 I understand there are certain ice

         22  cream companies that are back in business and I

         23  believe I should, or my company, or any other ice

         24  cream company or any other fleet should have the

         25  same opportunity to continue their business.
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          2                 I do appreciate this bill being

          3  introduced and I look forward to working with the

          4  Council to upgrade the image of the street vending

          5  industry. We have always been advocates of having

          6  good looking carts, and working with other

          7  businesses within the City.

          8                 I just want to clear up one misnomer.

          9  A business like mine had very substantial overhead.

         10  It is not like we operated for free. We own a

         11  building in Manhattan, we pay taxes, we paid sales

         12  taxes, we had union employees and we operated as

         13  legitimately as any other business in the City. So,

         14  I hope that idea that we operated out of thin air is

         15  done away with.

         16                 I have also been in the street

         17  vending business since 1983 in Manhattan, which I

         18  was put out of business under Local Law 15, and I

         19  have never heard of the Five Borough Food Vendors

         20  Association. I would appreciate taking this into

         21  consideration, I don't believe that their testimony

         22  should be held as a credible representative of any

         23  food vendors. But I do thank you for considering

         24  this legislation and I do support it fully.

         25                 Thank you.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: Thank you very

          3  much. And you know, I don't have to tell you this

          4  but I always feel for you because I think you are

          5  the reason why I am pushing this bill and moving

          6  this thing forward, because people like yourself who

          7  are hard-working New Yorkers deserve a break, and I

          8  think we made a mistake last time and I have said it

          9  many times.

         10                 UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: I am a general

         11  vendor, I sell Native-American crafts, so I guess I

         12  represent another minority. 511 is a bad bill, bad

         13  for the City, bad for the people who live there, for

         14  visitors, terrible for vendors. The public, the

         15  visitors and the vendors, the people who are

         16  affected most, were not consulted in writing this

         17  bill. Why weren't vendors invited to this hearing?

         18  You went out of your way to notify a lot of people,

         19  but not the ones who are being hurt. You give

         20  immigrants quite a lesson in how America works.

         21                 Street vending really is very

         22  important to the City's ambience.  People want the

         23  diversity, hospitality that the vendors give. We

         24  have stacks of petitions and letters to prove it.

         25                 This bill with its warrant system is
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          2  so restrictive it would put most of us, especially

          3  general vendors, out of business. Many vendors who

          4  understand 511 are terrified. You know that vendors

          5  are minorities, immigrants that are people who have

          6  already been downsized or squeezed out of mom and

          7  pop stores. Some have physical, mental or emotional

          8  problems not covered by paragraph A, page 29 of this

          9  bill, and do not get other benefits or cannot hold a

         10  regular job. And they are old and poor people, but

         11  City leaders like to hide poor people.

         12                 If our spots are taken away, where

         13  will we go? If those who must work in different

         14  locations in order to make ends meet, as Mr.

         15  DiBrienza seems to understand, where will they go?

         16  The City still has one of the highest unemployment

         17  rates, welfare, food stamps, very hard to get. Even

         18  soup kitchens are having trouble feeding the hungry.

         19                 One more thing. Page 33, lines 11 and

         20  12, suppliers of general and graphic material are

         21  representing on the Street Vending Committee. Why?

         22  Many vendors make their own merchandise. They sell

         23  handcrafts, imported items. Doesn't each vendor

         24  select his own supplier? Will such chosen

         25  representative design a cart that will display his
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          2  brand of T-shirt? The only result I see from this

          3  kind of thinking is more favoritism to big business,

          4  and more conformity.

          5                 What this City needs is to move back

          6  to diversity and compassion. The traits that make

          7  New York special. Perhaps you are a bit out of touch

          8  with the vendor and the people who walk on our

          9  streets whom you represent.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: Milya Liberson. You

         11  don't want to speak? Okay, I heard you before. I saw

         12  him before, he doesn't speak English well. It is

         13  difficult for him. I didn't have to hear his words,

         14  all I have to see is his tears, and it was enough

         15  that was said to me, so I guess I understand that.

         16                 Paul Schubert.

         17                 MR. SCHUBERT: Good afternoon. My name

         18  is Paul Schubert. I have been a vendor for

         19  approximately 15 years. The reason for this is the

         20  City's high unemployment rate. I worked in delis and

         21  restaurants as a semi-skilled employee. Due to the

         22  economic conditions I was forced out. So, being I

         23  could not find a job, I had to create one. A noble

         24  profession, vending.

         25                 I have seen many changes in vending
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          2  law, some of which I consider to be extremely

          3  illogical, such as C4, C5, C6 zones, this doesn't

          4  make a commercial zone. Yet, a vendor who pays sales

          5  taxes, income tax, is prohibited from vending in a

          6  C5, C4, C6 zone, and yet a commercial business is

          7  allowed to be there. I find this to be illogical at

          8  best.

          9                 Now, this idea of putting a vendor on

         10  a specific street corner is a neat idea. Peddling is

         11  the finest portable. What happens if, for whatever

         12  reason, the man cannot make a living on that

         13  particular corner? Or on the other side, you have a

         14  man who has an established business, established

         15  clientele, is able to meet his needs and those needs

         16  of his customers on a regular basis, and yet he is

         17  denied the opportunity to run a legitimate business

         18  and serve needs of his clientele. Diversity.

         19                 You are going to wind up having very

         20  little of one thing in one area, and a great deal of

         21  it in another area. Thus, the diversity of our City

         22  will be compromised. People travel from all over the

         23  world specifically to come to New York City to

         24  partake of street vending, food, merchandise, and

         25  tourism is the number one industry in this City. It
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          2  produces billions of dollars in revenue, from

          3  hotels, traveling, subways. The MetroCard was

          4  designed to make tourist travel easier. It was not

          5  designed for us common working folks, contrary to

          6  popular belief, because tourism is a number one

          7  industry. Any law which restricts vending is going

          8  to hurt tourism. People will wish to go elsewhere.

          9  And being in tourism is a number one income

         10  generator. Any law must take us into account, and if

         11  anything, we should expand the amount of streets.

         12  And thus we increase diversity, increase tourists

         13  spending more money in more areas, and I do want to

         14  thank you and this should be considered.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: Thank you.

         16                 MR. MACHADO: Good afternoon,

         17  Chairman, Council members. My name is Mark Machado,

         18  and I am in favor of Intro. 511.

         19                 My family attempted to secure

         20  locations in City parks. Even though we successfully

         21  outbid everyone else, and went into written contract

         22  with the City for these locations, we were refused

         23  food vending permits because of Local Law 15.

         24                 We have recently discovered that our

         25  company was the only company to be refused multiple

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            93

          1  COMMITTEE ON TRANSPORTATION

          2  permits in the park ever.

          3                 In fact, these permits refused to my

          4  family were given in multiple to another company who

          5  bid way lower and retrieved it.

          6                 Repeal Local Law 15 so that my family

          7  and I will not be subject to this type of selective

          8  enforcement and discrimination.

          9                 I know the City is attempting to

         10  cover up this incident by setting up some type of

         11  management program in the City parks, but I wish to

         12  be an entrepreneur, not an employee of New York

         13  City's Parks Department.

         14                 Thank you very much.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: Thank you.

         16                 Doug Polos, and Evangelos Pakakostas.

         17  They are not here, okay.

         18                 Vincent Pipitone. He is not here? Oh,

         19  here you are, okay.

         20                 MR. PIPITONE: Hello. My name is

         21  Vincent Pipitone. I am a licensed street vendor for

         22  many years. I appreciate that you seem to be wanting

         23  to do very well for the food vendors and everything

         24  you say and the support of the food vendors seems to

         25  back up that 511 is going to be beneficial to the
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          2  food vendors. But 511 is very unfair because it

          3  lumps food vendors in with general vendors, and the

          4  whole warrant system is very unfair to a general

          5  vendor. As it is general vendors are restricted,

          6  prohibited from going into commercial zones, we are

          7  forced to go into residential zones and

          8  manufacturing zones where you have a very limited

          9  number of people walking by, limited traffic,

         10  limited clientele. So to compensate, to make a

         11  living, when you are relegated to a manufacturing or

         12  a residential zone, is to develop a route to move

         13  around, to work in a different spot every day of the

         14  week.

         15                 Very often over the years I have

         16  found it necessary to work in morning rushhour spot,

         17  an evening rushhour spot, a different spot in the

         18  middle of the day for the noon rush. Very often I

         19  found it necessary to work paydays for different

         20  employers, certain employers' people were paid on a

         21  Thursday, I would go to that area, I would go to a

         22  different spot on a Friday, certain employers pay

         23  every other Thursday or every other Friday and I

         24  would gear my business and gear my schedule to

         25  accommodate those rushes.
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          2                 If you assign someone that is

          3  restricted from a commercial zone, assign them to a

          4  manufacturing area and you have to be in that same

          5  spot and you can't have any more than that one spot,

          6  you will put us out of business, you will probably

          7  put me out of business.

          8                 It may work for a food vendor,

          9  because if you have a food vendor seeing the same

         10  people every day, that person might stop and buy a

         11  hot dog for lunch every day, or buy a soda every

         12  day, but if you are selling hats, that same person

         13  isn't going to buy a hat every day, or he is not

         14  going to buy an article of jewelry or an article of

         15  clothing every day.

         16                 It is inherently unfair to lump food

         17  vendors and general vendors together in the same

         18  bill. That is my basic position.

         19                 Thank you.

         20                 MR. KELTY: Good afternoon. My name is

         21  Gene Kelty, I am a member of Community Board 7 in

         22  Queens.

         23                 I am here to oppose Intro. 511 for

         24  the following reasons. I am going to give you some

         25  update on some of the reasons why, because I chair
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          2  Community Board 7 Consumer Affairs, and I have gone

          3  on quite a number of sweeps that we worked with the

          4  Police Department on and Consumer Affairs.

          5                 I will use reference to your local

          6  law. On page two you make reference to the

          7  definition of a corner. I have a problem with that

          8  because in the definition you talk about a line

          9  running ten feet out in the middle of an

         10  intersection. All corners around it are arched, so

         11  when you make a reference like that, you should

         12  really be including where that imaginary line is

         13  going out. That number probably should be somewhere

         14  around 15 feet to designate a corner, and this way

         15  you will not have a problem with the disabled,

         16  pedestrians or any vehicle people trying to turn at

         17  those corners.

         18                 I object to page 21 and 36 where you

         19  talk about the restricted streets. The only one that

         20  you have on here is Roosevelt Avenue. Under the old

         21  law we had Main Street on it that was going from

         22  Roosevelt Avenue to Sanford Avenue, and Casino

         23  Boulevard from 41st to Sanford Avenue.

         24                 My feeling is that is not big enough.

         25  We originally tried many years ago to increase the
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          2  restriction on Main Street all the way up to

          3  Mulberry Street, because we felt that there was a

          4  congestion. That bucktails into the concern about

          5  the new street vending committee.

          6                 My concern is if they don't have set

          7  rules and regulations, as far as what they consider

          8  restrictions on or give it to the community board or

          9  their council to determine what makes the reason for

         10  something to be congested, it is somebody's

         11  supposition what they consider congestion.

         12                 Five-hundred people in a City of ten

         13  million is a lot of people on the corner.

         14  Five-hundred people in the City of 1,000 is a lot of

         15  people, and I think the law should be defined before

         16  we move ahead with that.

         17                 Also, the restricted streets do not

         18  take into consideration DOT. DOT's highway has their

         19  own set of restricted streets. We had numerous

         20  problems with the coin-operated games that they used

         21  to put on the sidewalk that the kids used to ride,

         22  the play games. They are not included as the same

         23  restricted streets, they should be bridged across.

         24                 My concern in page 37 again deals

         25  with, it says the Committee will have a right to
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          2  look at congestion and the Police Department can

          3  operate or law enforcement, they should be talking

          4  about what congestion is. It is an open supposition

          5  and it is very hard to define that when you are out

          6  there. I have been through it, I went through the

          7  sweeps and numerous times I had Consumer Affairs and

          8  the Police Department, and when we went with

          9  existing circumstances, it was a battle of

         10  discussion with the vendor that was there.

         11                 I am not here to get rid of the

         12  vendors, I just think that the enforcement should be

         13  proper so that they know what they have to follow.

         14  And the following thing with the food vendors, I

         15  think that the Fire Department should be consulted

         16  since they are now using propane gas, which is

         17  regulated gas and it is not being taken into

         18  consideration, I will just finish up with that. For

         19  the last ten years at budget consultation meetings,

         20  and after the Fire Department, to regulate the

         21  propane gas, and if you are going to let these

         22  vendors out on the street where they can operate

         23  where they were connected before, I believe it was

         24  about three years ago they did a sweep in Manhattan

         25  where they found all of these parts in one building
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          2  which presented danger.

          3                 So, I think the Fire Department

          4  should be regulating when they deal with mobile food

          5  vending with propane gas.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: Thank you.

          7                 Hyun Lee.

          8                 MS. LEE: Hi. My name is Hyun Lee,

          9  H-y-u-n, last name L-e-e. I am with the Committee

         10  Against Anti-Asian Violence. I am here with a group

         11  of vendors from Chinatown who have asked me to speak

         12  on their behalf.

         13                 I am sure many of you are aware, but

         14  for the benefit of those who aren't, I would like to

         15  give you a little history of the vending industry in

         16  Chinatown.

         17                 It is true that in 1994 there was a

         18  concerted effort on the part of the City to sweep

         19  vendors off the main thoroughfares in Chinatown.

         20  They were forcibly removed from Grand Street, Mott

         21  Street and other parts of Chinatown, and forced onto

         22  the triangle on Canal Street, as well as Dragon Gate

         23  Market and Sara Roosevelt Park.

         24                 Now, flash forward five years.

         25  October 6th of last year 12 vendors who were
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          2  originally forced onto the triangle on Canal Street

          3  were once again displaced with no explanation or due

          4  process.

          5                 Despite the fact that all merchants

          6  around this triangle assigned petitions in support

          7  of vendors to remain on the triangle, the local

          8  precinct to this day has refused to allow the

          9  vendors to return to work.

         10                 As a result, many vendors are forced

         11  to leave the industry and go back to working in

         12  sweat shops. One 70-year-old vendor, Mr. Chan, has

         13  become homeless as a result. When vendors were

         14  displaced from the triangle and asked where they

         15  should go instead, they were told to go to the

         16  market in Sara Roosevelt Park on Grand Street.

         17                 As some of us are aware, last Sunday

         18  this market was demolished by the City. The City

         19  displaced 21 vendors, them out onto the street and

         20  hired WEP workers to clean up the park after they

         21  bulldozed the market.

         22                 The City has kicked vendors off the

         23  streets and out of the market in Chinatown, now the

         24  bill proposes to close our main thoroughfares in

         25  Chinatown, as well as other parts of the City.
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          2  Vendors are under the gun and are given little

          3  assurance of their survival.

          4                 I believe it is no coincidence that

          5  the vending bill is being proposed under this

          6  current climate when we are seeing so many vendors

          7  already being displaced all over the City.

          8                 How it seems to any rational person

          9  to take the time to look at the larger picture of

         10  what is happening to vending in the City right now

         11  is that vendors are displaced even as the Council

         12  has yet to pass a bill so that when the new system

         13  is ready to be implemented, vendors have no other

         14  choice but to fight and compete with each other for

         15  the limited number of spots to ensure their

         16  survival.

         17                 It is no news to anyone that vendors

         18  have historically been blamed for all kinds of

         19  problems, from street congestion to rat problems,

         20  with much racist undertone, I might add.

         21                 And it seems vendors are blamed for

         22  the City's worst problems at times when it serves

         23  the political agenda of those in office.

         24                 I wish to make very clear here, we

         25  strongly oppose Bill No. 511, and the warrant system
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          2  that is proposed.

          3                 I am aware that there are many more

          4  vendors currently in New York City than the number

          5  of warrants that will become available. What you

          6  would effectively do by passing this bill is further

          7  displace many more vendors, as well as drive many

          8  underground to vend on the streets illegally. Not

          9  because they are criminals or law-breakers, but

         10  because you give them no other choice but rather

         11  criminalize them by passing this bill.

         12                 Vending has been an important aspect

         13  of Chinatown's economy that provide lower cost food

         14  for garment and restaurant workers who work 12-hour

         15  days. In the past three to four years the number of

         16  vendors in Chinatown has decreased from 300 to

         17  approximately 80. Vendors have become an endangered

         18  species in New York City, driving vendors further

         19  out of work will have a devastating impact not only

         20  on vendors and their families but the community as a

         21  whole.

         22                 Don't protect tourism in Chinatown at

         23  the expense of people for whom Chinatown has been a

         24  home and workplace for many years.

         25                 Don't protect only the racist
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          2  interests of residents on Grand Street at the

          3  expense for those of whom Chinatown has been the

          4  only place of home and work place for many years.

          5  Thank you.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: Michael Vajda. And

          7  then we are going to finish up with Kwut Mascoe, is

          8  he here, or she? No. Is Tason Rauf here? Okay, you

          9  will be next.

         10                 After that it will be Elpie Stiffler.

         11  You will be after that. And Joel Meyer and Mr.

         12  Zaman.

         13                 Okay, those are the speakers and

         14  that's it.

         15                 Go ahead.

         16                 MR. VAJDA: Yes, my name is Michael

         17  Vajda. I have been a vendor for about 18 years. I

         18  was back here for about four or five years ago when

         19  you passed the bill to take away the permits for

         20  multiple holders. I heard you before just say, this

         21  is to Noach Dear, about giving corporations back

         22  their permits. The last time I was here, I am not

         23  against the corporations having permits. The only

         24  thing that I am against is when they abuse it.

         25                 For instance, what I am saying is,
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          2  when I have been in this business 18 years and I

          3  hear these corporations saying that they want 100,

          4  200, here it is I am here 18 years, and I don't even

          5  have one, which the only reason why I am in business

          6  now is, thank God for my mother, otherwise I would

          7  be out of business, otherwise I would be paying

          8  $6,000, $7,000 for a permit.

          9                 And as far as the BIDs is concerned,

         10  they closed my location on 35th and Seventh Avenue,

         11  where they say there is congestion. There is only

         12  two vendors there. There is no congestion there.

         13                 I had, two days ago I had 34th Street

         14  Partnership threaten me that they were going to put

         15  planters, which I went across the street. Not only

         16  have they put trees, they put polls, now instead of

         17  being ten feet off the crosswalk, I am 30 feet off

         18  the crosswalk.

         19                 No tourists are going to see me. My

         20  regular customers are not going to come across the

         21  street. I don't know what to do.

         22                 I don't understand, does BIDs own the

         23  City, or does the people own the City? I would like

         24  to have an answer, because if they could put

         25  planters anywhere that they want, and if you have an
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          2  objection to it being there, and if you touch it,

          3  the City will put you in jail. I don't think this is

          4  right. And I think Midtown has been hit very hard,

          5  and I am talking for all of the vendors that are on

          6  Seventh Avenue to Eighth Avenue, they are not even

          7  giving an opportunity to be in business. All of the

          8  in between streets, they are gone.

          9                 Now, I am trying to survive on a

         10  quarter of the salary now. I have a daughter to

         11  support, I can't even support myself now, let alone

         12  my daughter.

         13                 I think it is very unfair. I don't

         14  have anything against these partnerships, because

         15  they cleaned up the City real nice, but when they

         16  start picking on individual vendors, that are just

         17  trying to make a living, if the 34th Street

         18  Partnership would have came to me and said if we

         19  could come up with something, I would have worked

         20  with them. But instead they put a tree, then a pole,

         21  and I am 40 feet back, and now I have been

         22  threatened they are going to put planters.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: I appreciate what

         24  you are saying, and I just asked my Counsel in

         25  general to look at this whole issue of planters, but
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          2  as far as I know they are supposed to get permits

          3  and I am questioning if those permits, what kind of

          4  permits they are.

          5                 MR. VAJDA: Well, here it is,

          6  everybody has 100, I don't even have one.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: I understand that.

          8                 MR. VAJDA: And that is what I

          9  addressed four years ago, when I gave up these

         10  corporations.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: I asked my counsel

         12  to look at this permit issue. The permit for a

         13  planter, I don't know what basis they could put a

         14  planter there without a permit.

         15                 MR. VAJDA: Yes, well, all of these

         16  buildings now are putting planters.

         17                 There are some streets that are legal

         18  now who put 20 planters.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: That is what I just

         20  asked my Committee Council, to check it out to see

         21  what basis they can put these planters out.

         22                 I understand that. Thank you very

         23  much.

         24                 MR. VAJDA: Could I just say one thing

         25  about the Seventh Avenue area? They said 144
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          2  streets, they took 100 off, or 44 streets off, but

          3  in that area from 35th Street to 42nd Street, they

          4  didn't take anything off, and I think it is unfair.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: I hear you. I hear

          6  you, and we are trying to rectify it.

          7                 Hasan Rolf.

          8                 MR. ROLF: Hello. Good afternoon, Mr.

          9  Chair. I am a vendor, I am serving coffee, donuts

         10  and bagels for about 11 years on 77th Street,

         11  between Third and Lex. I have about two workers. I

         12  have one worker which works full time, which is my

         13  helper, and also worker which is part-time, which is

         14  a new immigrant going to school to get his Ph.D, as

         15  has been the case for so many times I have

         16  immigrants that don't speak the language who come

         17  over here to make it in the land of opportunity.

         18  And for 77th Street, I can speak specifically for

         19  77th Street. I think there was a lot of

         20  discrimination and all that squeezing like political

         21  tactics on 77th Street. We are about five vendors or

         22  four vendors in general over the whole year and one

         23  general merchandise vendor, and I have been there

         24  for so many years that I don't see what is the

         25  criteria for the congestion.

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            108

          1  COMMITTEE ON TRANSPORTATION

          2                 The problem over here is about

          3  opening up the street and make a living. I am a

          4  small entrepreneur, I have been there for so many

          5  years. I went to school, it helped that I can get

          6  off early and finish up 1:00 in the afternoon, 1:30,

          7  and then go to school and then also be flexible.

          8                 I wanted to expand and have more

          9  permits, but I couldn't. With the lottery '95, I got

         10  one permit, I was lucky. I said maybe the City

         11  Council is helping us, but I don't see, there were

         12  so many tactics that I couldn't understand.

         13                 For now my whole purpose, if you give

         14  us so many permits and it is not passed, so the

         15  permits are worth nothing.

         16                 My whole suggestion, that we are

         17  serving the hard-working New Yorkers and we want to

         18  be there to serve the hard-working New Yorkers.

         19                 Enforce all the health, if you want a

         20  new design for new pushcarts, I will be more than

         21  happy, because I change my pushcart every two years

         22  because with all of the rules we have in New York

         23  City, you have to change it no matter what.

         24                 One more thing that I want to mention

         25  is, what it is on 77th Street that they are closing
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          2  the street, and then when I moved yesterday, the day

          3  before yesterday on Third Avenue, I found that they

          4  plant a new tree. You work between 76 and 77th

          5  Street and you see that there is only one tree and

          6  then all where I should put my pushcart, they put a

          7  new tree and then they put a fence next to it.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: It is probably

          9  illegal, by the way.

         10                 MR. ROLF: I think it is illegal,

         11  because if it is, then it happened over night and I

         12  see no, because it is tactics -- I am an

         13  entrepreneur and I pay my taxes, I pay everything.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: You can make a

         15  complaint on that to the Department of

         16  Transportation, that they should move that fence,

         17  because the fence on a sidewalk, as far as I know,

         18  is illegal. And I am not so sure --

         19                 MR. ROLF: This is a fence, even

         20  though they didn't put the tree in front of the

         21  place.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: Okay.

         23                 MR. ROLF: And then if I want to move

         24  to another next door where there is construction,

         25  they put up a new building and I cannot move there
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          2  anyway.

          3                 So, I just want to, if there is any

          4  criteria that we can work with, I go every morning

          5  telling my workers if we are going to work or if we

          6  are not going to work.  Sometimes we play with the

          7  rules. Sometimes you say when you have to talk nice,

          8  you have to do this, I met my wife, by the way, in

          9  that block, I went to so many weddings of my clients

         10  who live in that block, and maybe I have only three

         11  people that don't like me, and I have been in this

         12  country over ten years, maybe I don't know all of

         13  the politics or behind the scenes and all that, all

         14  I want is to work and pay my taxes, as simple as

         15  that. That is all I am asking for.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: That's why we are

         17  here.

         18                 MR. ROLF: Thank you, sir.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: Joel Meyer. And

         20  after to be followed by Elpie Stiffler, and Mr.

         21  Zaman.

         22                 MR. MEYER: Yes, I am one more person

         23  here to speak against 511. And I notice that in

         24  spite of the fact that as has been mentioned before,

         25  the people most concerned weren't notified, yet the
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          2  overwhelming bulk of the people here who aren't

          3  attached to the BIDs or attached to community boards

          4  controlled by some BIDs, almost everybody else has

          5  been speaking against us.

          6                 Now, why is it that the vendors

          7  weren't informed? You know, it is the same euphemism

          8  that is practiced. You know, you call this some kind

          9  of democracy, you know, everybody has their say and

         10  people up there listen to what everybody is saying,

         11  they go back and they do whatever they want.

         12                 Like we are in the peanut gallery and

         13  the democracy is that the Council members, with

         14  their rigged elections and their corrupt parties

         15  just make the laws and everybody else is shut out.

         16                 I mean, it is a total joke. We are

         17  not talking about a bill to regulate vendors; we are

         18  talking about a bill to bend the regulations. That

         19  is what it is really about.

         20                 This is a bill to wipe the vendors

         21  out. You know, there are certain euphemism again.

         22  Like in Nazi Germany, when they went to exterminate

         23  people, you know, those who were into denial -- for

         24  those who were into denial, they said we are only

         25  resettling them, or we are sending them east. Here
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          2  they are saying we are going to give each vendor a

          3  warrant, one warrant per vendor for one particular

          4  place. Only the musical chairs arithmetic is that

          5  there are very few spots that are left legal. And

          6  you know what? Every spot that is given out to a

          7  vendor could then be bombed by a planter placed by a

          8  community board or a landlord that owns the property

          9  up to the street, they are doing it all the time

         10  anyway. So, you know, this is a total euphemism.

         11                 The fact is that there are many fewer

         12  spots now than there are licensed vendors. So, this

         13  is a bill to basically sweep licensed vending off

         14  the streets, and the public doesn't know about it,

         15  the public thinks that it is a bill to regulate

         16  vendors, or even protect them by giving them their

         17  own warrant to their own spot, they can own a piece

         18  of the sidewalk. And where is that? Maybe it is in

         19  the swamps in Florida. You know, those schemes where

         20  they sell people land in Florida, they give them

         21  hundreds of dollars, it is real bargain, but the

         22  thing is in the middle of a swamp or it doesn't even

         23  exist.

         24                 You know, I mean this is basically

         25  what that bill is about. It is a bill to eliminate
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          2  street vending, and it is completely in the spirit

          3  of the fascist Mayor that we have now.

          4                 We have people that call themselves

          5  democrats they capitulate to everything, or they

          6  even exceed the Mayor as far as I know. I don't even

          7  know if he proposed something like this, it is

          8  something that comes out of the City Council. It is

          9  another step towards fascism, it is a way of forcing

         10  everybody into a military goose step. And let's face

         11  it, the goose step is to -- you know, unemployment

         12  today, permanent unemployment is death. It really is

         13  a death warrant like the former speaker said that

         14  this bill is offering, it is a death warrant. I

         15  wonder if also that was laughed at behind the scenes

         16  as, we are really getting over, we will actually

         17  call it a warrant and it will be a death warrant, we

         18  will put it over on everybody.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: Please conclude.

         20                 MR. MEYER: Okay.

         21                 I want to say that I am totally

         22  opposed to bill 511. I don't know how any of you

         23  Council members will be able to look in the mirror

         24  at yourselves anymore, but then again, I imagine

         25  that you have done enough corrupt things in your
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          2  life, that this one more, probably you won't feel

          3  you are adding that much. You will feel that you

          4  have committed to life the public service.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: Thank you.

          6                 Next.

          7                 MS. STIFFLER: Good afternoon, Mr.

          8  Chair.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: Identify yourself

         10  for the record.

         11                 MS. STIFFLER: My name is Elpie

         12  Stiffler, I am a street vendor, and I came here, I

         13  am nervous to speak but I have to make this speech

         14  in order to fight for my own living.

         15                 First, for the last ten years we have

         16  been fighting for what we are selling. Broadway

         17  planted all of these plants and displaced a lot of

         18  vendors, the work of the Community Board Number 2

         19  and closed a lot of blocks in our vicinity.

         20                 The 35 planters that she planted in a

         21  five block radius, 35 planters, it is too much. I

         22  don't know if she has permit from the DOT, but there

         23  was one day he is even trying to ask the Police

         24  Department to give tickets to small business owners

         25  with their signs. So, I think she is overdoing her
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          2  power.

          3                 Also, the warrants, not all vendors

          4  are selling 365 days a year, some are selling only

          5  July, August, September or November, December or

          6  sometimes Saturday and Sunday, to give us a

          7  permanent spot that we don't like, we will not go

          8  there. I mean, we will not go there. I will be maybe

          9  staying in my spot right now, if you give me a

         10  warrant somewhere in the City, I will not go there,

         11  because I will not sell in a street where there are

         12  no people or nothing. I will only sell on a main

         13  street where I can be able to show my merchandise to

         14  people, tourists and passers-by.

         15                 These BIDs, that are trying to harass

         16  the vendors by trying to increase the value of their

         17  condo and co-ops, I think they are so racist. They

         18  are trying to put all of us out of business by

         19  making all of this against us. What if I am sick and

         20  I cannot sell on that space? The warrant is like a

         21  bullet for Diallo, it is like we are unarmed and you

         22  are making another one for all of us. We are not

         23  even represented. You say, oh, they have to have

         24  warrants, he is not even a vendor, a street vendor

         25  like us. I mean, the food vendors are different from
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          2  the general vendors. If they want warrant it is all

          3  right, but we do not want the warrant.

          4                 If I don't want to sell like on

          5  Lafayette or Mercer, I want to sell on Broadway, I

          6  don't want to sell downtown or midtown, but the

          7  midtown is even our closer vendors, there are no

          8  legal spots in midtown for general vendors, only

          9  food vendors. I don't know, I cannot think of

         10  anything more. I think the artists should be given

         11  their First Amendment Rights, you know. The artists

         12  right now who have occupied the lots on Broadway,

         13  formerly commercial spaces, then they raise their

         14  family and make Broadway zoned residential home.

         15  They said, no, there should be no more vendors on

         16  the block, they can't even look behind. When there

         17  were artists in the seventies struggling, now in the

         18  nineties they look on the artists on the other side

         19  and say, no, these people are garbage. This is like

         20  ethnic cleansing, or sterlization of the

         21  neighborhood. They don't want to go out their door

         22  with a vendor on the street. They look down on us.

         23                 So, I please beg -- or maybe, I don't

         24  know, maybe I vote, I pay tax, I don't know. But I

         25  still beg, please try to make a law that is fair for
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          2  all of us.

          3                 Maybe I have another suggestion, all

          4  of these districts here, all of these closed

          5  streets, 400 blocks and there are 4,000 vendors,

          6  4,000 vendors and in our neighborhood there are only

          7  five blocks that are legal, do you want to put one

          8  warrant there? No, it's not enough. There are 4,000

          9  vendors, you must have 4,000 blocks. If you put two

         10  vendors in one block, you must have 2,000 blocks. If

         11  you put five vendors in a block, you need at least

         12  1,000 blocks. You have to open all of this. You have

         13  to start from scratch. Your bill must start with

         14  opening like this, because of the need to avoid

         15  congestion, or we should open all of the streets

         16  that were closed by Community Board No. 2 or other

         17  community boards. And it should be opened, if you

         18  can close all of the streets, then you can open it

         19  when there is no more congestion.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: Thank you.

         21                 MS. STIFFLER: You are welcome. Thank

         22  you very much for giving us a chance here.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: Mr. Zaman. This is

         24  our last speaker.

         25                 MR. ZAMAN: Good afternoon.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: Identify yourself

          3  for the record.

          4                 MR. ZAMAN: Sure. My name is Antiqua

          5  Zaman. I am a street food vendor, licensed. I have

          6  been vending since January 1998. I used to work for

          7  Chemical Bank for 16 years. I have two children and

          8  my wife, that I then lost my job when Chemical Bank

          9  merged with Chase, and I was trying to look for, I

         10  will try to make it brief, find another job, but

         11  finally I start working for somebody as a street

         12  vendor, and so with the new rules to issue permits

         13  with the lottery I was one of the luckiest persons,

         14  I got a permit number. But recently they had street

         15  congestion, that the street congestion where I work

         16  it affects my spot and I have got a warrant from the

         17  officers that you are no longer working there.

         18                 There is one thing that I suggested

         19  that is coming in my mind, I work on Seventh Avenue,

         20  and that side of the street, you work there, and

         21  this side of the street you cannot work there. This

         22  bill I think is a very confusing bill. And I would

         23  appreciate it if you could take a look around,

         24  because it affects people who have families,

         25  vendors, and I don't want to go t work here, I have
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          2  been working there, as a honest participant, and I

          3  have a family to support. I think it is very unfair,

          4  and it hurt me, it affected a lot of other street

          5  vendors. We are not only a threat to the police, I

          6  am very close to the fashion center, which is the

          7  garment center, they have a fashion center community

          8  which there are security guards coming and start

          9  warning. I asked him are you a police officer or

         10  something, which is from Midtown South community?

         11  They said, no, you people are not staying there. I

         12  don't understand what is going to happen. I would

         13  appreciate it if you would reconsider this

         14  confusing, very confusing bill. You work this side,

         15  you cannot work here. I moved across the street,

         16  because I have family, other fellows start fighting,

         17  and this has caused a lot of problems for other

         18  vendors.

         19                 Thank you very much. And I am very

         20  tired, I just came from work. I pushcart different

         21  areas, anywhere I go I tread (sic) from the stores,

         22  I tread from the police, so if I got two summonses,

         23  I have two kids and I have a family to support, and

         24  I would appreciate it very much if you would

         25  reconsider. I hope you come up with the right
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          2  solutions to try to help these vendors. I work as an

          3  honest citizen, I pay tax and I have family like

          4  everybody else has, and this has hurt all the

          5  vendors.

          6                 Thank you very much.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: Thank you.

          8                 Council Member Nelson, did you want

          9  to say something, and then I will close after that.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: Okay.

         11  Obviously, this is my first meeting. One of the

         12  functions of this body is to hammer out as fair a

         13  law as possible. We have listened to a lot of people

         14  today. There were a lot of questions I had toward

         15  the next law, why (a) has 100 permits and (b) has

         16  none, or one rather. I question why vendors who were

         17  closed down a couple of years ago had not been given

         18  priority to re-establish is quite distressing.

         19                 Finally, I would be hardput to

         20  support the legislation if it didn't give some

         21  preference to disabled veterans. Memorial Day is

         22  coming in a couple of months, we can't do much along

         23  these lines or anything for those who died, but

         24  giving us the privilege to sit up here and listen,

         25  but we can do for those who were almost killed in
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          2  any war they happened to be in. That's about it.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: Thank you very

          4  much, Council Member Nelson.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: This concludes

          6  today's hearing, and I want people to know that we

          7  listened, we heard your comments, and I hope to take

          8  that into consideration, and then when we finally do

          9  have a bill that will pass, we will have something

         10  that both the vendors, as well as the business

         11  people in the BIDs, will have something in common

         12  that they can work together.

         13                 I understand that people are trying

         14  to earn a living, I understand that people are

         15  working hard. Many of the people here who are

         16  vendors are immigrants who came to this country

         17  trying to earn a living, and found this the best

         18  place to earn a living. I understand there are

         19  others also who have been unemployed, or they have

         20  seen their parents or grandparents vend as well, and

         21  decided to continue that tradition. I think there is

         22  a balance that is needed both for the individual

         23  vendors, as well as the corporations, and we talk

         24  about corporations, I am not talking about people

         25  controlling 500,000 permits, I am talking about
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          2  small mom and pop manufacturers, people likely to

          3  hear testimony from Coca latte and other companies

          4  that manufacture and produce either ice cream,

          5  donuts, pretzels, whatever it may be, and they take

          6  their product and they sell it, and it is a great

          7  way to distribute their products. It provides jobs

          8  to people, it provides an opportunity for people to

          9  earn a living.

         10                 I understand that we have to

         11  recognize that, and that is the problem that we have

         12  to take into consideration.

         13                 We also understand that the City of

         14  New York is booming with tourists and we have to

         15  recognize that we have to deal with pedestrian

         16  safety, and there are areas that are heavily

         17  congested that we have to deal with, with regard to

         18  the carts. So we will take that all into

         19  consideration.

         20                 Please understand that those who are

         21  affected, either the people who own a business, or

         22  those who are food vendors, or general vendors, can

         23  reach out to us and we will listen. What the

         24  conclusion, what we will come up with is something

         25  only time will tell. I would hope together that we
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          2  could come up with something that will benefit and

          3  make people satisfied as best as we can, understand

          4  that we are not going to satisfy everybody.

          5                 So, with that in mind, this meeting

          6  is adjourned, and we will continue our business on

          7  other issues that come before our City Council, as

          8  well as this Committee.

          9                 Thank you.

         10                 (Hearing concluded at 3:45 p.m.)
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